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Corporate Profile
A TG

China Fortune Holdings Limited (“China Fortune” or the “Group”),
formerly named Fortune Telecom Holdings Limited, mainly
sells and distributes mobile phones and digital products in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group was
established in Hong Kong in 1992. It was first listed on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
code: 8040) on 16 February 2000, and then successfully shifted
to the Main Board (Stock code: 110) on 26 January 2004. The
Group has a strong shareholder background and well operational
and professional management team.

In 2007, the Group acquired Zhuhai Reminda Telecom
Equipment Company Limited which was a company selling
mobile phones and telecommunication equipments in the PRC.

In 2009, the Group acquired a Strontium mining site in the PRC,
as its first step in entering the natural resource industry.

The corporate culture of the Group rests on the integration of
the West and the East, modern and traditional management
philosophy, with an aim to build up a “Continuous Learning
Enterprise”. The corporate spirit of China Fortune focuses on
‘Human Enterprise”. Under the leadership of its aspiring and
energetic management, China Fortune’s staff will team up
and move towards the Group’s goal of ranking as one of the
largest and best wireless communication and data products and
services providers in the region.
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HiRE®
Fortune
Resources

HREERKRE
Exploration, exploitation,
refining and asset investment
of mineral resources

RERE
ZERARAT
China Fortune
Holdings Limited

BRXE
Fortune
Telecom

BARGETEEHRE
Retail chain for
telecommunication
equipment
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Corporate Milestones
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®2.18

The former trading arm of the
Group - Express Fortune Limited
(“EFL”") was founded by Mr. Lau Siu

Ying and his brothers in Hong o 7

Kong.

2\EEE RERBNE BT EE ® Completed the acquisition
BERAR ([EE] ) —~EEFS of 51% shareholdings of
2E DI Commenced Fortune Synergy Pacific (Holding)

Telecom Group’s franchise
retail business in the PRC.

RERRRESEEE
BERTERY -

Limited (“Synergy Pacific”).

SERBERRES (ER)
BRAR ( [REEH] )
Z51% % HE

EFL became one of Nokia’s Listed on the GEM Board of Fortune Shanghai
earliest authorised the Hong Kong Stock was acknowledged
distributors in the PRC. Exchange (Stock code: by Shanghai
RARARETS D @i 8040). it
[SEpaN — ATE S Bbk 25 BF A 2 &

EREHZ BB AR IR L Management

(BAR 5% : 8040) o

B Ih & HE—1512,000,0003%
TLZREE o

Committee as one of
the best enterprises

) 1 2 for commodity sales.
RiE LB DBING
A US$12 million syndicated BRFESEEES
loan was successfully BAMDINEREE
arranged. Y —-

9

A HK$160 million
syndicated loan was
successfully
arranged.

AObZ Y
160,000,000 7T R
LFEE



®3

The Group has achieved a record
annual sale of 2.1 million sets of
mobile phones and a record net
profit over HK$60 million.

REBAIT$42,100,0008 BB E 3
FR3B60,000,00078 TTALF AR ER

®6

For a consecutive year, Fortune
Shanghai was again acknowledged
by Shanghai Waigaogiao Free Trade
Zone Management Committee as
one of the best enterprises for
commodity sales.

EEE_F  RELBBEE SN
SREANEEEZEEARMEE
BEBLEZ—-

®9

A US$16 million syndicated loan was
successfully arranged.

B IH 2 HE—1816,000,0003 7T 2 R E
Em °

® 11

Fortune Shanghai increased its share
capital from US$6 million to US$25
million.

RIE LB E AN H6,000,000% 7T
A% 25,000,000 7T ©

® 12

Successfully completed the
acquisition of 100% shareholdings
of Synergy Technologies (Asia)
Limited, and the disposal of 46%
shareholdings of Synergy Pacific.

B3 5k B Synergy Technologies

(Asia) Limited 2 100%% 18 & H & &
B2 46% R HE ©

SHNC @

1.26
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Corporate Milestones

THEER

Contracted to acquire 51% stake in
Zhuhai Reminda Telecom Equipment
Company Limited ( Bk {18 1R £
AR AR ) and completed the
acquisition in October 2007.

TR BRI B IR AN A IR
INFLZ51 %M - A —RFLE T
F e -

Formed a joint venture with
TeleChoice International Limited for
the Nokia fulfillment business.

HiTeleChoice International Limited
V—HEEAR ) (EEEERAEE
HIET

Name changed to China Fortune
Holdings Limited.

FRRTPEREZRERA

) O |

Listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock code:
110).

REBBIAERLS (R
RE% - 110) o

Newly obtained the
nationwide distributorship of
Samsung mobile phones.

HG=EBHEEZ2H
7 $HHE

®9

Successfully obtained the
Fulfillment Distributorship
for all Nokia Stores in the
PRC.

RYBETEMERELE
BEZRAEED HHE -

Completed the
acquisition of 50.8%
interest in Sifa Mining
which has the right to
conduct mining
activities in a
Celestite (Strontium),
Zinc and Lead mining
site situated in the
Hubei Province, the
PRC.

PRIE A R R B
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEREE

\< \ China Fortune Holdings Limited

é;&u, e
Lau Siu Ying
EIRN

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

EBRBEFEITE

Dear shareholders, BAIIE -

REVIEW [E] B8

2016 continued to be a year full of difficulties and challenges. T-RFNARNBES  mm kB - BEAEE
é@ﬁéﬂi%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ’\‘ﬁ&iﬁé@a = E MG A
FNAFEBTHR WAEERUHBEENHKREE
T B

Although there was growth in the mobile phone market, the
competition in the mobile phone retail market was very keen
and the Group’s performance in this area had been affected. XHE-BHEPHNEREHREHE

Customer’s focus is expected to gradually shift from the ERZEYER - REFREFEHEE
functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience and, HEH -

in this regard, the large mobile telecommunication chain stores
have advantages.

AEEREXRBEUAZTILBRER —EREY
EBRE-—TRABRREE AR -HRAEE

In order to diversify the business of the Group, we have been
actively looking for opportunities which will further enhance

the shareholders’ value. Since we have been in the related
mobile phone industry for decades, and the potential for mobile
phone related business development is surely enormous and
sustainable, big data, mobile phone operating system and
mobile internet are the major key business areas the Group is
interested in.

ERFHEEHEFTERTE NLBHE
AmAAEGRARASERRE S  KRBUER
BHEFREZALEPEBRPERAEER
SRR ZEGER-



For our mining business, the downturn in demand for minerals
and cyclic fluctuations in the industry have dramatically and
adversely affected our construction plan while we are in the mid-
way in developing a new mining site exploitation system. The
road ahead for our mining business won’t be straight and easy,
but full of obstacles and uncertainties. We will certainly stay the
course and solve all the problems encountered.

OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES

The world becomes even more and more challenging nowadays,
so as the mobile phone industry in the PRC. The PRC is one
of the strongest countries in terms of economic performance,
and with its huge internal consumption and room for expansion.
Though with keen competition, development potential is still
enormous. The Group will continue to strengthen our existing
relationship with the leading manufacturer to look for further
cooperation opportunities.

With a view to diversify the business of the Group, the Group is
actively looking for opportunities which will further enhance the
shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | wish to sincerely thank our employees and business
partners for their continued dedication and commitment to
the Group, and | would like to express my appreciation to
our financial institutions, shareholders and investors for their
continuing supports and trust towards the Group.

Lau Siu Ying
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEER WD

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Financial Review

Our turnover in mobile phone business decreased in the year.
On the other hand, there was tightened cost control, leading
to a reduced loss of HK$5.1 million incurred in this business
segment, as compared to a segment loss of HK$8.1 million in
last year. For our mining business which the exploitation on the
first phase was completed in 2010 and development of a new
mining site exploitation system in the next phase commenced
since then, exploitation of minerals is now halted. Owing to a
revised forecast adopted in the year for the valuation of mining
right, an impairment loss on mining right of HK$84.2 million was
recognised in the year, with details set out in note 17 on pages
114 and 116 of this report. By offsetting with a HK$21.1 million
deferred tax credit associated with this mining right impairment,
the net effect of this impairment to the financial result in this year
was approximately HK$63.1 million. In aggregate, the Group
incurred a loss of HK$86.3 million in this year, as compared to a

loss of HK$28.6 million in last year.

The Group recorded a decrease in the consolidated revenue
from HK$157.9 million in last year to HK$110.6 million in this
year. The gross profit amounted to HK$1.8 million, a decrease
when compared to the last year of HK$5.4 million. The gross
margin percentage during the year was 1.7% which was lower
than the last year of 3.4% due to the lower gross margin
achieved in the mobile phone trading business in this year.
Other income decreased from HK$2.2 million in last year to
HK$1.2 million this year mainly due to the decrease in interest
income. The other gains and losses in the year consisted a one-
off impairment loss recognised in respect of available-for-sale
investments amounted to HK$6.3 million and an impairment loss
recognised in respect of trade and other receivables amounted
to HK$0.8 million.

Bl B8 & Al =

B BEE

REERHEEEB L EEBRNANEEBIR
Do B—FHE BRWRERARTS - IWEBEDE
ELEZEERADZ5,100,0008 7T MEF 2D
P& 18 81 £8,100,0008 7T - G A S 8 2 IR %
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The selling and distribution costs amounted to HK$2.6 million
which decreased as compared to HK$6.6 million of last year.
It was mainly because the staff costs and rental expenses
decreased during this year. The administrative expenses
amounted to HK$15.2 million, a decrease when compared to the
last year of HK$18.2 million mainly due to decrease in staff costs
in the year.

As far as the mobile phone retail chain and wholesale business
in Zhuhai was concerned, the revenue achieved during the
year amounted to HK$4.3 million, decreased by 80.2% as
compared with last year of HK$21.7 million. Owing to the fierce
competitive business environment this retail chain facing, the
Group continued to share a loss from it during the year. As the
performance of the associates was unpromising so far since
these associates were invested by the Group, the Group shared
net losses of HK$0.9 million from the results of the associates
during the year as compared to the net loss of HK$2.0 million in
last year.

The finance costs kept at same level at HK$1.3 million this year
when compared to last year.

The net asset value of the Group attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2016 amounted to HK$106.7
million or HK$0.13 per share when compared to HK$165.4
million or HK$0.20 per share as at 31 December 2015. The
basic loss per share was 5.99 Hong Kong cents as compared to
the basic loss per share of 2.78 Hong Kong cents in last year.

As at 31 December 2016,
borrowings amounted to HK$13.8 million when compared to

the Group’s aggregate other

HK$14.8 million as at 31 December 2015, which was maintained
at a similar level.

The gearing ratio of the Group, defined as the ratio of the total
long term liabilities to the shareholder’s equity, was 0.50 and
0.48 as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 respectively.

EEERWED

$HE KD AN 52,600,000 T B EFE 2
6,600,000 B AT Bt I E B RN AREF
EEIXNARBESHAIRLIE-TTRERA
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CEBRBOHAES AEBEFRELE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEER WD

The total cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$16.0
million as at 31 December 2016 without any deposit pledged
to banks. The Group is financed by a combination of its equity
capital,
borrowings. During the year, there was no material change in the

cash flow generated from its operation and other

funding and treasury policy of the Group. The Group considers
there is no material potential currency exposure as the majority
of its revenue and expenses are derived and incurred all in
Renminbi in the PRC. It is the treasury policy of the Group to
manage its foreign currency exposure whenever its financial
impact is material to the Group.

The inventories of the Group as at 31 December 2016 amounted
to HK$1.2 million, when compared to HK$2.0 million as at 31
December 2015, mainly since less inventories was kept as
driven by stringent inventory control in the year. The inventory
turnover period was 5 days in this year when compared to 17
days of last year. The Group will continue to apply strict policy in
inventory control in the future.

The amount of trade and other receivables as at 31 December
2016 was HK$40.3 million, when compared to HK$43.3 million
as at 31 December 2015. The amounts for two years are of
similar level.

Included in the Group’s trade and other receivables as at 31
December 2016 were prepayments to two major suppliers of
HK$33.7 million, which arose from the prepayments for purchase
mobile phones from the two major suppliers be the Group during
2016. At 31 December 2016, no impairment loss has been
recognised in respect of the prepayments.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had in total 38 employees
as compared to 89 employees as at 31 December 2015.
Employees were remunerated according to the nature of their
job duties and market trend. The Group provided staff welfare
and fund contribution to its employees in accordance with the
prevailing regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong. There was no
material change in the remuneration policy, bonus scheme and
share option scheme during the year. The Group has a share
option scheme under which the Company may grant share
options to the participants, including directors and employees,
to subscribe for shares of the Company.

RZE—RF+ZA=+—BZzHEER:E
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Market Overview

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’s Republic of China
(“MII”), there were more than 1.3 billion subscribers to mobile
phone services in the PRC as at the end 2016. While there are
continuing intense competitions among the major mobile phone
manufacturers in the PRC, they are trying to cut the distribution
layers by directly supplying to the provincial distributors and
leading retailers with a view to increase their profitability.
Because of this, leading vendors have developed multi-channel

distribution models which include “national distribution”,

“provincial distribution”, “direct to retail” and “direct to operator”.
On the other hand, mobile carriers are key participants in the
mobile phone industry chain. The restructuring of mobile carriers
in 2009 and the issuance of 3G licenses have led to more
intense competition among the mobile carriers. By cooperating
with retailers, especially large mobile telecommunication chain
stores, the mobile carriers can benefit from the retailers’ in-depth
understanding of customer behaviors and spending preferences.
Through such cooperation, the customers will experience more
professional, convenient and integrated customer services.
Thus,
expected to become the main sales channel for the mobile

large mobile telecommunications chain stores are

carriers for their bundled mobile phones.

EEERWED N
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HEHE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEER WD

Business Review
Mobile Phone Business

The Group was involved in the business of trading, wholesale
and retail of mobile phones and telecom equipments in China.
Although there was growth in the mobile phone market, the
competition in the mobile phone retail market was very keen and
the Group’s performance in this area had been affected.

Customers focus is expected to gradually shift from the
functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience.
Customers will normally require services such as function
presentations, digital phone books synchronization and pre-
In the
3G & 4G era, the convergence of mobile telecommunications

installing software, etc, in purchasing a mobile phone.
and the Internet also led to rapid development of value-added
business which requires the retail channels to advance from
a pure sales platform to an integrated service platform. In this
regard, the large mobile telecommunication chain stores have
advantages.

Mining

We commenced developing a new mining site exploitation
system in our Strontium mining site since 2010. After the
expiration of a 5-year mining operating permit on 25 September
2012, Sifa Mining obtained a renewed mining operating permit
for 2 years (the “2-year Permit 2012-2014”) from the Ministry
of Land and Resources of the PRC (FFZE AR X FIBEE £+ &R
#6) (“MLR™), under which Sifa Mining was allowed to carry out
exploration activities only, but not exploitation activities. The
2-year Permit 2012-2014 was expired on 25 September 2014.

On 27 April 2015, a mining operating permit was granted by
MLR for a term of 2 years from 25 September 2014 to 25
September 2016 under which a restriction was added that no
exploitation activities were allowed but only exploration activities.
Such restriction imposed on the renewed mining permit was
basically the same as the previous mining permit which was
approved by MLR in 2012 whilst the application for mining
exploitation permit is a continuing process.
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Although it is expected that the downturn is temporary and
only being a normal cyclic adjustment in the industry, the
Board proceeded in a prudent way to restructure the overall
construction schedule of this new mining system, by readjusting
construction speed and time schedule for matching the industry
cycle accordingly. Nevertheless, the Directors are also exploring
all commercially viable opportunities to maximise the return from
this investment, including finding potential buyers.

The Directors have carefully reviewed the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit of the mining business (the
“CGU”") to which the mining right is allocated. The Directors
determined the recoverable amount of the CGU was not able
to be measured by a fair value less cost of disposal using the
market approach method as no sufficient and reliable market
information can be obtained. The recoverable amount of the
CGU was then determined by a fair value less cost of disposal
as at 31 December 2016, using the income approach method,
with reference to the professional valuation performed by
Colliers International (Hong Kong) Ltd, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers. The recoverable amount of the
CGU was classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. The key
assumptions adopted in the income approach method relate to
the renewal of a mining exploitation permit, estimated reserves,
estimated productivity and the estimated prices of mineral
resources. The calculation uses cash flow projections with
certain key parameters as below:

Discount rate (post-tax) BEIR R (Fi1g)

Growth rate £ &
Gross profit ratio E R =
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EEEN WD

Based on the above review, in the current year the Directors
of the Company readjusted the exploitation time schedule in
order to match the expected date of successful application of a
mining exploitation permit, and have consequently assessed that
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to be lower
than its carrying value as at 31 December 2016. Accordingly, a
shortfall of HK$84,240,000 was recognised as impairment loss
on the mining right to write down the cash-generating unit to its
recoverable amount.

Prospects and Outlook

The continued economic growth in the PRC is fuelled by a high
internal consumption. As the world’s biggest handset market,
there were more than 1.3 billion handset subscribers in the PRC
with an increase of around 50.5 million subscribers in 2016.
There was over 58% of 4G users out of the total subscribers,
and forecasted to increase much further in the near future. On
the other hand, there were more than 900 million mobile Internet
users which implies that there are huge business opportunities in
both mobile application and mobile commerce. Since the Group
has been in the related mobile phone industry for decades, big
data, mobile phone operating system and mobile internet would
be surely the key business areas that the Group is interested in.
The Group is actively looking for further opportunities which will
further enhance the shareholders’ value.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Siu Ying, aged 53, is the founder, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 1992. Mr. Lau
has extensive working experiences in the telecommunications
industry for over 25 years and has established solid business
contacts in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lau is responsible
for directing the Group’s overall business policy and strategies
as well as overseeing the Group’s business development in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to setting up his business, Mr.
Lau worked for Hutchison Whampao Group for approximately
5 years, in charge of the business development of the
telecommunications in the PRC. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a Master of Science degree in Information
Technology from the National University of Ireland, Dublin.

Mr. Lau is currently the trustee in New Asia College of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and the Board Councilor of
China Mobile Communications Association. In the aspects of
social and economic activities, Mr. Lau is devoted to promoting
economic and educational development. He served as the vice
president of the Hong Kong Association of Jieyang, the honorary
president of Shanghai Chaoshan Chamber of Commerce,
Hong Kong and Macau Director of the Dongguan City Youth
Federation and the vice president of Hong Kong Island Chaoren
Association Limited.

Mr. LUO Xi Zhi, aged 59, joined the Group in October 1995
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
September 2002. Mr. Luo is also the Financial Controller of the
Group’s PRC operation. Mr. Luo holds a certificate in Accounting
from the Finance Academy of Jiangxi Province. Mr. Luo has
over 20 years of financial and accounting experience in the
PRC. Prior to joining the Group in 1995, Mr. Luo was the chief
accountant for Zhaoging Sz Di Telecom Co., Ltd.
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Mr. WANG Yu, aged 51, joined the Group in April 2006 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in November
2009. Mr. Wang is the General Manager of a subsidiary of the
Company and in-charge of the mining business segment of the
Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong University
with a master degree and a bachelor degree in Computer
Science. Mr. Wang has more than 10 years working experiences
in channel and distribution management on computer products
and mobile phones with local and multinational companies in
the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang was a General
Manager of a listed company in the PRC focusing on IT
business.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHANG Wing Seng, Victor, aged 79, last held the position
of Managing Director of APCG Business Pte. Limited. Prior
to this, Mr. Chang was the Managing Director of Singapore
Technologies Telecommunications (Beijing) Pte. Ltd. based
in Beijing for 2 years. Mr. Chang had held various senior
management positions over 25 years with the Singapore
Technologies Group, mainly as the Director of Finance. Mr.
Chang was a graduate in Accounting from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology, Melbourne, Australia and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia. Mr. Chang had also
completed the Program for Management Development at the
Harvard University Graduate School of Business Administration.
Mr. Chang was a certified public accountant in both Singapore
and Australia. Mr. Chang was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in October 1999.

Mr. WONG Lit Chor, Alexis, aged 58, graduated from the
University of Toronto, Canada in 1981 with a bachelor degree
in Arts majoring in economics and commerce and has obtained
a master degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1987. Mr. Wong has over 30 years
of banking, investment, corporate finance and securities dealing
experience gained from working as a senior executive in a
number of listed local and PRC financial services companies. Mr.
Wong is also an independent non-executive director of two other
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong. Mr. Wong was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2006.

IREE S R_TERFHAMBASE
B YR -_ZFZNF+—-AEZERRRAHR
TEF - TRERARRA—WBFRAAZHEL
B AEARRZERBERS TAEEXRAR
RBRE FEERMBRLIRELTEML - T
HEFBEZ A RBERAR 2 EKMERNRED
EERBOHERTHEBI0F TERLR -
MEASEA EEREBHEFBR-—H LT AR
HEAKLE TRAEEAMRES-

BUFHITEE

BABEE 79 L —HIEBUR
APCG Business Pte. Limited® £ 24 1 -
B[ % & 7 A & 4b ;= Singapore Technologies
Telecommunications (Beijing) Pte. Ltd.H
EEHEBE2F - B % £ MW Singapore
Technologies Group T {FitBB25%F « & #EF T
LEREEERMN(ETEAVFAE) X
A4 8 508N 22 B AN Royal Melbourne Institute
of Technology X ® M Institute of Chartered
Accountants & &t % ° 8 5T 4 B FE R MG i K 25
By 2 EIR R ERIZ o B0 A BT AT I ROR
MAESHAM - BEER—NANANF+AEE
AR RBZBIYIERNITES -

BAUAKE 585 R~ MW N\—FENEXRZ MR
ZARBEX FAKEMBEEXE LR I
R NANEFEBRERXAZRFIHEERR
TEN -BALEREXEALRTEN LTS
BMRERBAEHESRITRAE  RRITER &
B CERENBFRHEF T EEABIOFL
B-BLENRBEREXZARINMEER
EHRRZBIUFATESF -TRALER_FT
NENABRZRERRRBZBIYIERITES -



Annual Report 2016
ZE—R"FH

Directors and Senior Management Profile
EERSHREBEASRET

Dr. LAW Chun Kwan, aged 51, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in June
2012. Dr. Law has extensive working experience in various
business fields including advertising, telecommunications,
information technology and real estate development in both
Hong Kong and the PRC. Dr. Law is presently engaged in
real estate development business in the PRC. Dr. Law holds a
bachelor degree of social science from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a master degree of e-business and a doctorate
degree of business administration in information systems from
the Edith Cowan University, Western Australia.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. FOK Wai Ming, Eddie, aged 49, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company in January 2014. Mr. Fok
is also the Financial Controller of the Group and the authorised
representative of the Company. He graduated from the University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree of Science in Engineering
and the University of Wolverhampton with a bachelor degree in
laws and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fok has years
of financial and audit experiences in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure to protect the interests
of all shareholders. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and code provisions
(“Code Provisions”) set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
complied with most of the Code Provisions of the CG Code,
except for the deviations as stated in paragraph headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” and “Re-election of

Directors”.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure
the business activities and decision making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by Directors of the Company during the year under
review.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, each of whom
has confirmed that he has complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2016. The Model Code also applies to other specified senior
management of the Group.

TEERER

EEQUNEBSELEE R  BRERMTINE
AR BREREER RMERERER
RZAFE-ARBZEREBFRNEAHE
RHMBRARESZ ETRA ([ LHARR]) M
BIAREERERER TR ([EXRERTA)
Z R B B sy BIESC (TsF BIGRST) RARIE -

BE-T-—R"FTA=+—"HBLEFE &2
A —BEAERERERTAZ KB TR
HEIEFEREFRATEIRIERES MR
B Pl BE -

B TR AEEARRZEEER
RRERE BRXGEFEMRAREFESEE
RBEERE -

BEEZEHRRS
BEFER AARCHHERETZIESRH

Ry LR AT S0P 8 LM BT AEEETT
EHRXHEEST A ([FEEFA]) -

MEREFELETERANE SEFCBRR
HE_Z—R"F+-_A=+—RHLFERN—&H
BTRETRIAE 2 REER - REBEMIE
EEMERABINERZRESR-



Annual Report 2016
ZE—R"FH

Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall accountability

Members of the Board are individually and collectively
accountable to the shareholders for the success and sustainable
development of the Company. The Board provides direction
and approval in relation to matters concerning the Company’s
business strategies, policies and plans whilst the day-to-
day business operations are delegated to the executive
management. The Board is accountable to the shareholders
and in discharging its corporate accountability, every Director of
the Company is required to pursue excellence in the interests
of the shareholders and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying
the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in
accordance with the statutory requirements.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors of whom all are
independent as defined under the Listing Rules. Independent
Non-executive Directors constitute more than one-third of the
Board. The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers that all Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent. To the best knowledge
of the Company, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among the members of the Board.
Brief biographical particulars of the Directors are set out on
pages 17 to 19.

Re-election of directors

All Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term as stipulated under the provision A.4.1 of the
CG Code but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with the relevant
provisions in the Bye-laws of the Company, if the appointment of
Directors is made by the Board, the Directors so appointed must
stand for election by the shareholders at the first annual general
meeting following their appointments and all Directors, except
the Chairman, must stand for re-election by the shareholders by
rotation. Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of
each director.
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Nomination of directors

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set out
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
to select and recommend candidates for directorship.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the
Company, monitors performance and the related risks and
controls in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Company.
Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
Executive Directors or the officer in charge of each division
and function who is required to report back to the Board.
Functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to
management are reviewed periodically. All Board members have
separate and independent access to the senior management,
and are provided with full and timely information about the
conduct of the business and development of the Company,
including monthly reports and recommendations on significant
matters. Should separate independent professional advice be
considered necessary by the Directors or any Board Committee,
independent professional services would be made available to
the Directors or such Board Committee upon request. The Board
has delegated some of its functions to the Board Committees,
details of which are set out below. Matters specifically reserved
for the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material
contracts, significant appointments such as Company Secretary
and external auditor, terms of reference of Board Committees, as
well as major corporate policies.

To implement the strategies and plans approved by the Board,
Executive Directors and senior management meet on a regular
basis to review the performance of the Group and make
financial and operational decisions. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover on directors and officers liability for
its directors and officers.

Details of the responsibilities, membership, attendance and
activities during the year of each Board Committee are set out
on pages 25 to 29.
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Board meetings and attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy.
Four Board meetings were held in 2016. At the Board meetings,
the Board reviewed significant matters including the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, proposals for final and
interim dividends (if any), annual report and half-year report. At
least 14 days’ notice is given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and all Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. All minutes of the Board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
to all Directors for inspection. During the year, the Chairman of
the Company has held a meeting with all the Independent Non-
executive Directors without other Executive Directors presented.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings in RZE—RNF ZSEELEEES SR ILH
2016 is set out below: T
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE/
Directors ) FEINE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) Bl NELE (/) 4/4
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi BEBEZRE 4/4
Mr. Wang Yu EEREE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor B 5K 5 o A 4/4
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis EHREAE 4/4
Dr. Law Chun Kwan FEiRmE L 4/4

Chairman and chief executive officer

Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual but Mr. Lau Siu
Ying currently assumes both roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.
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Provision A.4 of the CG Code states that all directors should be
subject to re-election at regular intervals. However, Mr. Lau Siu
Ying, being the Chairman of the Board, does not need to retire
by rotation.

Mr. Lau Siu Ying has been in charge of the overall management
of the Company since its incorporation. As a result, although he
does not need to retire by rotation and assumes both roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the Board considers that such arrangement at the Group’s
current stage of development can facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and maximise the effectiveness of
its operations. Nevertheless, through the supervision from the
Board including the Independent Non-executive Directors, the
interests of the shareholders should be adequately and fairly
considered.

Directors’ continuing professional development

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the vyear,
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’s responsibilities. Sufficient resources
are provided to enable the Board Committees to undertake their
specific roles. The respective role, responsibilities and activities
of each Board Committee are set out below:
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Remuneration committee

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is to
determine and review the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management, including salaries,
bonuses, share options and other plans. The Remuneration
Committee reviews and approves the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives and considers salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group, so as to align
management incentives with shareholders’ interests.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and an Executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chang
Wing Seng, Victor, an Independent Non-executive Director. The
Company Secretary of the Company serves as the secretary
of the committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to the
committee members within a reasonable time after the meetings.
The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
website.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members
are as follows:
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Membership and Attendance REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE/
Members 8 HEPR
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Chairman) Bk s (F/E) 1/1
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis XYL A 1/1
Dr. Law Chun Kwan FEiRmE L 1/1
Executive Director BITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying B/NE e 1/1
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A meeting was held in the year in which the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration policies and approved
the salaries and bonuses of the Executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has communicated
with the Chairman of the Company about proposals relating to
the remuneration packages of other Executive Directors and
senior management.

Details of directors’ emoluments and retirement benefits are
disclosed on page 111. Remuneration payable to members of
senior management is disclosed on page 133. Share options
granted under the Company’s share option plan are disclosed
on pages 126 to 128.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee reviews financial information of the Group,
monitors the effectiveness of the external audit and oversees
the appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement of
the Company’s external auditor, as well as their independence.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
financial reporting process and the system of internal controls
and risk management. The Board also delegated corporate
governance functions to the Audit Committee, including the
review and monitoring of (a) the development and review of the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
recommendations; (b) the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; (c) the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) the code of conduct of the
Company; and (e) the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and its compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report. The full terms
of reference setting out the committee’s authority and its role
and responsibilities are available on the Company’s website and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s website.
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The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, with one of whom having the relevant
professional qualifications and expertise. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor, an
Independent Non-executive Director. The Company Secretary
acts as secretary of the Audit Committee. Sufficient resources
are made available to the Audit Committee when independent
legal or professional advice is required.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. The external
auditors of the Company are invited to the meetings, take part
in the discussions and answer questions from the committee
members. By invitation of the Audit Committee, other Directors
and senior executives may also attend the meetings.

The Audit Committee held two meetings in the year. The
Company Secretary prepared full minutes of the audit committee
meetings with details of discussions and decisions reached. The
draft and final versions of minutes were sent to all committee
members within a reasonable time after each meeting.
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The composition of the Audit Committee during the year as well ERZEeRNFACHANERSZEENELE
as the meeting attendance of the committee members are as gHIBERET
follows:
Membership and Attendance REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE
Members 8 EEPR
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Chairman) Bk s A (FE) 2/2
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis EHREAE 2/2
Dr. Law Chun Kwan &R imiE + 2/2
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During the year, the Audit Committee has discussed with the
external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit; reviewed the interim and annual financial statements
of the Group, particularly judgmental areas, before submission
to the Board; reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group, findings and management’s response;
reviewed the Group’s adherence to the code provisions in the
CG Code. The Audit Committee recommended the Board to
adopt the interim and annual financial statements for 2016. The
Audit Committee has also performed the aforesaid corporate
governance duties as delegated to it by the Board.

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set
out the nomination procedures and the process and criteria
adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members,
a majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors
and is chaired by the Chairman of the Board. The Company
Secretary of the Company serves as secretary of the
Nomination Committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to
the Nomination Committee members within a reasonable time
after the meetings. The full terms of reference are available on
the Company’s website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited’s website.
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The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year REZBENFARAZAKNEREZSZEEXBEHE
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members EEIBERAT
are as follows:
Membership and Attendance REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
)
Members 8 PR
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) Bl NExE (F/HE) 1/1
Mr. Wang Yu TREAE 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors VTHHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor 1§ b 1/1
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis B=RH A& 1/1
Dr. Law Chun Kwan FERHIE L 1/1
A meeting was held in the year, in which members of the REZEENFRNERIT-RAEgE SLEX
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and BEENEF o FE RERMEK-
composition of the Board.
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY ESgZnbEE
The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the EEERMETEBER EFRHINESSERK

approach to achieve diversity on the Board. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged the responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The auditors are
responsible to form an independent opinion, based on their
audits, on the Group’s financial statements and express their
opinions.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 49 to 53.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

BDO Limited was re-appointed as the Company’s external
auditors by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on
27 May 2016, until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting. They are primarily responsible for providing audit
services in connection with the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016. During the year, the
fees charged to the accounts of the Group for BDO Limited’s
statutory audit services amounted to HK$850,000. In addition,
HK$40,000 was charged for non-audit service, which was for
interim review service.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie, the Group Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company, undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update his skills and
knowledge in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board is committed to implementing an effective and
sound internal controls system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated
to the management the implementation of the system of
internal controls and to the Audit Committee the review of all
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management function within an established framework.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is committed to high standard of business ethics
and integrity. A code of conduct is enforced on all employees
of the Group. The employees at all levels are expected to act in
an honest, diligent and responsible manner. No personal gifts or
other forms of advantages from any person or organization doing
business with the Group can be accepted by any employee.
Business partners and customers are reminded from time to
time that our policy forbids any employee or agent of the Group
from accepting any gift from them.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with
shareholders is essential to enable them to have a clear
assessment of the Group’s performance as well as
accountability of the board of directors. Major means of
communication with shareholders of the Company are as
follows:

Information disclosure on corporate website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely and timely
as possible. The Company maintains a corporate website at
www.fortunetele.com where important information about the
Group’s activities and corporate matters such as annual reports
and interim reports to shareholders, announcements, business
development and operations, corporate governance practices
and other information is available for review by shareholders and
other stakeholders. When announcements are made through the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the same
information will be made available on the Company’s website.
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General meetings with shareholders

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful
platform for direct communication between the Board and
shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each
substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

The 2016 annual general meeting (“2016 AGM”) was held on 27
May 2016. The attendance record of the Directors at the 2016
AGM is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of

general meetings

HE

Directors o] R K& RE

Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) Bl NExE (F/HE) 1/1

Mr. Luo Xi Zhi BEBZ2ERE 1/1

Mr. Wang Yu FREE 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor Bl oK BB o A 1/1

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis BRI L E 1/1

Dr. Law Chun Kwan R ImE T 1/1

The Company’s external auditor also attended the 2016 AGM.
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Investor relations

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its
activities to those with a legitimate interest and to respond to
their questions. Questions received from the general public and
individual shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases, great
care is taken to ensure that no price-sensitive information is
disclosed selectively.

Shareholders’ rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the CG
Code:

Convening of a special general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to clause 58 of the Company’s bye-laws, a special
general meeting may be convened by the Board upon requisition
by any shareholder holding not less than one-tenth of the
issued share capital of the Company and the securities being
held carrying the right of voting at any general meetings of the
Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at the
head office address of the Company, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the
proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

The Board shall arrange to hold such general meeting within two
(2) months after the receipt of such written requisition. Pursuant
to clause 59 of the Company’s bye-laws, the Company shall
serve requisite notice of the general meeting, including the time,
place of meeting and particulars of resolutions to be considered
at the meeting and the general nature of the business.

If within twenty one (21) days of the receipt of such written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such special
general meeting, the shareholder shall do so pursuant to the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”).
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow the Act for including
a resolution at an annual general meeting of the Company
(*AGM”). The requirements and procedures are set out below:

()  Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, shareholder(s) holding
() not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 shareholders, can submit a
written request stating the resolution intended to be moved
at the AGM or a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular
general meeting.

(i)  The written request/statements must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s
registered office and/or principal office in Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six
weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the
general meeting in the case of any other requisition.

(i) Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is
in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board (i) to
include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (i) to
circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided
that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum
of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of
the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders. On
the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to
meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the AGM or the statement will
not be circulated for the general meeting.

BRERBRRASELRHEEZZRF

MBCRBEN AR BRRBFEAS ([BRBFK
D ERERBR VAKRBERARZET A
BEKLEFENMT

(i)

(i

(i)

BIBREVERTE FHAENERRRERE
IRECHBRRBEEZERT IR =_T5H
2Z— (i) R100B R 2 R AT IR R
EMERIABABRREBEFAS LBE
ZRFER NMARBERBERRAS LE
BZEMBRREEAERAEEFLET
BTGB IB1,000F 2 Rt = -

HEBRRVDEARZERE R R E I
B2 ERXARRZEAMMERER,XEE
TEMRER FRARRWERR - WEAE
HRBRBM BN ZE@MER Rt
EREZBERBFREETATLRAME
EMRE B I EMAER  AIAERR
RE|TMAPR—EEHRXE-

RIBABDEESOK HEEEREE A
ANEGBEREFTS()IHRBRIAARRE
BFERERRE N()VEHBRRAGERAL - H
HARRAXNEZTEMECAEESHRLZ
ER UBNARRRBEZEELA 2R
BRBRRXERABRBAR HAKREE
BIMERIR R IR 2 2 MR M 15 2 S - 48
BB REELXBERRREFAR
WARIBABNARR A LM B OMESFH
Fis - AR ES MU AR MR
ZRERBGIEMARRBFEANGHRE
HBERRAG T ERBRAESMER -



(iv)

Annual Report 2016
ZE—R"FH

Corporate Governance Report

If a shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting convened to deal with appointment/
election of director(s), wishes to propose a person (other
than the shareholder himself/herself) for election as a
director at that meeting, he/she can deposit a written
notice at the Company’s registered office and/or its
principal office in Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary, not less than seven (7) clear days but
not more than fourteen (14) clear days before the date of
the general meeting. In order for the Company to inform
all Shareholders of that proposal, the written notice must
state the full name of the person proposed for election
as a director, his/her biographical details as required by
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the
shareholder concerned and that person indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns

to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose

contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

China Fortune Holdings Limited

Room 1505-07, Tower A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road,
Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

Email: info@chinafortune.com

Tel No.: +852 2422 0811

Fax No.: +852 2428 0988

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’

enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board

committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer the

shareholders’ questions.
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The directors present their annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal associates
are set out in notes 39 and 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 54 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared during the year. The directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements during the year in the plant and equipment

of the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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WARRANTS

On 20 May 2014, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Convoy Investment Services Limited (as
placing agent) for the placing of up to 160,000,000 warrants
of the Company at the issue price of HK$0.01 per warrant.
The subscription price attaching to each warrant is HK$0.50
per subscription share (subject to adjustment). The closing
price of the shares of the Company was HK$0.44 per share
as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the placing
agreement. The placing was completed on 15 July 2014 and
an aggregate of 160,000,000 warrants were issued to not less
than six investors, who are individual investors, being third
parties independent of the Company and its connected persons
(as defined under the Listing Rules). The warrants confers its
holders the right to subscribe for subscription shares during
a period of two years commencing from 15 July 2014. The
subscription shares to be issued pursuant thereto shall be
issued and allotted under the general mandate to issue shares
granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 21 May 2013. The Company raised a net
proceed of approximately HK$1.3 million from the issue of the
warrants and had been utilised as general working capital of the
Group. The placing would enhance the capital and shareholders’
base of the Company.

The outstanding warrants expired on 14 July 2016. Upon the
expiry of the outstanding warrants, an aggregate of 3,200,000
subscription shares had been issued upon exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to the 3,200,000 warrants. A net
proceeds of approximately HK$1.6 million arising from exercising
such 3,200,000 warrants had been raised. The Company had
utilised such net proceeds as general working capital of the
Group.

Other details of the warrants of the Company are set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015 consisted of contributed surplus and
accumulated profits were nil.
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi
Mr. Wang Yu

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
Dr. Law Chun Kwan

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws,
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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The term of office of each of the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors is the date up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
directors, the chief executive and their associates in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (“SFQ”)), which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name of director Capacity

Exps 4%

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (“Mr. Lau”)
B NEEE (TRIEE]) 2GR (M)

Beneficial owner

BB A

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
w=ANVIRE

Beneficial owner
EmEE A

Beneficial owner
EmEE A

Dr. Law Chun Kwan

BIRMEL

Held by a discretionary trust (Note)
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Percentage of

Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of
shares held the Company
FBE®RT (AR ERT
ZBERHE RAEABDL
188,300,013 22.63%
267,996,285 32.21%
456,296,298 54.84%
1,500,000 0.18%
1,000,000 0.12%
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Note:

These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by a discretionary trust,
the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.

The interest disclosed above represents long positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executives
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in
any shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO at 31 December
2016.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. The following
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table discloses movements in the Company’s share options

during the year:

Category | - Directors

FIE-E=

Mr. Lau

ks

Mr. Luo Xi Zhi
BEZRHE

Mr. Wang Yu

ITRELE

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor
KT

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
BRANEE

Dr. Law Chun Kwan

BimEt

Total for directors

EEEE

Category Il - Employees
ENE-EE

Employees

EE

Category lll - Consultants

FNE-FEM

Consultants
|

Total for all categories

Fir B SRl st

Date of grant

Rii B

12.7.2013
12.7.2013
12.7.2013
12.7.2013
12.7.2013

12.7.2013

12.7.2013

12.7.2013

Exercise
price
TEE
HKS$
BT

0.255
0.255
0.255
0.255
0.255

0.255

0.255

0.255

EEEREE

AR R ERHEEE Y BN R A MR AN
00  FRBBAATBRBEN 2

Outstanding Exercised Outstanding
at beginning during at end of
of the year the year the year
FPERTRE FRTE FLERTHE
8,000,000 - 8,000,000
1,000,000 - 1,000,000
1,000,000 - 1,000,000
1,500,000 - 1,500,000
11,500,000 = 11,500,000
100,000 - 100,000
300,000 = 300,000
11,900,000 - 11,900,000
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no
time during the year was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate. None of the directors, their spouses
or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for
the securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transactions nor contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the HRANTIRIERES LB S0 E336E 17
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at BEYIFEREELZMI R R-2ZTE—XE+_-A
31 December 2016, the following shareholders had notified the =+ —H ARFEBRTIBRREARNF D
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the TR EERBER -

Company.
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company KAFEREEI10ETZ ZER
Percentage of
Number of the issued share
Name of issued ordinary capital of
substantial shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
e #T (HEXQARERT
FTERRESR &5 EEREE RA&Az2BEDE
Mr. Lau Held by a discretionary trust (Note 1) 188,300,013 22.63%
2% 4t 2RERER (1)
Beneficial owner 267,996,285 32.21%
BB A
456,296,298 54.84%
Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy Held by controlled entity (Note 2) 188,300,013 22.63%
FEEL XEHEREs (Mx2)
Notes: B 5 -
1. These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company 1. ZEBRHHRHEEBRZEEEMKSIZ AT

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by
a discretionary trust. The beneficiaries of the discretionary trust
include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.

2. Under the SFO, Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy is deemed to have interests 2.
in the shares of the Company as he is entitled to exercise more
than one-third of the voting power at general meetings of Future
2000 Limited.

Future 2000 Limited$5 75 * Mz A AR —EZ#E
EAR A R ERERAZIEABEEELE K
BB REFRZo

BEBFRBEKRN ARFTELIEBER
Future 2000 LimitedZ [RE A& EITFE=0D2 —
LA EIZRE WA AR AR RS, S #E
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31 December 2016:

(1) The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the largest customer represent
approximately 92.0% and 58.9%, respectively, of the
Group’s total revenue;

(2) The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier represent
approximately 95.9% and 59.5%, respectively, of the
Group’s total purchase.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director or a shareholder of the Company which to the
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in any
of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 20 to 35 of this annual report, the Company has complied
throughout the year with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which were then in force during
the respective periods.

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is also set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Group has a share option scheme under which the
Company may grant share options to the participants, including
directors and employees, to subscribe for shares of the
Company, details of the scheme is set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group, which are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

Business Risk

The Group’s business risks include rapid change in the general
market conditions, downturn pressure on the overall economy
of China and price competition from other market players. The
Board is responsible for the overall management of the business
and review of material business decisions involving material risks
exposures from time to time.

Financial Risk

The Board monitors closely the Group’s currency risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Board also reviews
monthly management accounts, capital structure and key
operating data of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Board monitor and ensure that the Group is in compliance
with the applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Group
engages professionals from time to time to keep abreast of the
latest developments in the regulatory environment, including
legal, financial, environmental and operational developments.
The Group also adopts a strict policy in prohibiting any
unauthorised use or dissemination of confidential or inside
information.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems covering business,
financial and compliance risks of the Group and is satisfied
that such systems are effective and adequate for the current
operations of the Group.

TERRRFTHBAEER

EEeNTEARAKRERNIEEREARERE
EFARMzEE -RERREEEEREE
REBERZRER WEHEERKRERMKIE
RIRHEBIRE -

e 2

AREZEBAROEREDTERNS 282
b REBEEEE THENRABTISYT
CEEHT EFRAREHEREERTH
BE S REARR 2 EALBRE -

M EE R

EFETYEEAKBEZERRR  FXER -
EERBERBECRBR EFENEHNAE
BeEBAEEKRE BEARBRIBZEHE-

ERmEkE

EFEERITRARASEETERALRZ MR
FMER AEETREBEEXABURREE
BREZEMBER BEEE WE REREE
TR - NERBEREUBARBOR - ZIHERARER
BERLABMRZERIARBHER -

EFSOENAEENNERLARSE R
THMYE REAEBZER MBRARA
W ERRERARAEE R ZEN S
BANERR



SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. The
Group pursues this business approach by managing its business
prudently and executing management decisions with due care
and attention. The Group keeps on reviewing environmental
issues in its operations from time to time.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Report
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules
will be published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange within three months after the publication of this annual
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2016.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 December 2016, the Company entered into a conditional
Subscription Agreement with individual subscribers, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to issue total of 85,716,000 new
shares all at a price of HK$0.35 per share, which representing
approximately 10.30% of the Company’s existing issued
share capital and approximately 9.34% of its issued capital
as enlarged by the subscription shares. The gross proceeds
and net proceeds from the Subscription Agreement will be
approximately HK$30.0 million and HK$29.8 million respectively.
The net proceeds from the subscription shares will be applied for
general working capital.

Annual H(pml 2016
A=

Directors’ Report

EEEREE

HEETERBREERER

AEEBRIREBREEMELE Z R
BRER - ARECEBLETHREFEEREE
BUEEZFHATERERR - AEEBFET
MR EEEZIREEH

BR HEREXEERBRRS

KRABBRAERTIZEE=BARRER AR
Bt TR A BRI AR A -+ R e
ZREBE - HERPEERRE-

EHARERE

ARARRBE_T-—R"F+-_A=1T—HL#F
EA—BEAFEANARIERE -

R{BERER

RZZE—RNF+-A=+=8 A2FEHEAAR
BAFLBRGRERR Bt ARFRER
TR 170.35% 7T 2 B8 3175 ££85,716,000
IR (MEARRFIREBEBITRAL0. 30%
REREBROBER 2 BEITRAL.34% ) - R
BiHRFEFIEABERMEREBFERD B
#9 £30,000,000/% 7t % 29,800,000/ 7T - R B8
BOzBRBFESRAE—REEES-



China Fortune Holdings Limited
TREEERARAR

Directors’ Report

EEEHREE

As at 31 December 2016, approximately HK$15,599,000 was
received from the subscribers for the subscription shares.
The subscription was completed on 1 February 2017. A total
of 85,716,000 subscription shares have been placed at the
subscription price of HK$0.35 per share.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Siu Ying
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{HE : +852 28152239

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA FORTUNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEREZRERAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of China Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 142,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matters described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other
aspects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

The mining activities related assets and liability

As detailed in Note 17(i) of the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s mining operating permit had been
expired on 25 September 2016 and up to the date of
this report, the Group is preparing for the application of a
mining exploitation permit. The directors are of the opinion
that the Group will be successful in the application for the
mining exploitation permit. The directors have factored this
into their assessment of the recoverable amount of the
Group’s mining right and related plant and equipment of
approximately HK$168,516,000 (2015: HK$266,342,000)
and HK$8,952,000 (2015: HK$9,918,000) respectively, and
the carrying amount of the related deferred tax liabilities of
approximately HK$39,686,000 (2015: HK$63,967,000), as
at 31 December 2016 (“the mining activities related assets
and liability”). The relevant government authorities have the
discretion of approving the application or not. As there is
no sufficient appropriate audit evidence for us to assess
the likelihood and timing of the Group in obtaining a mining
exploitation permit, we are not able to satisfy ourselves
of the appropriateness of the assumptions used by the
directors in assessing the recoverable amounts and carrying
amounts of the mining activities related assets and liability
as at 31 December 2016, whether any further or reversal
of impairment on the mining activities related assets should
be recognised, and whether any further adjustment to the
mining activities related liability should be made.

Any further adjustments to the assets and liability as
described above might have a significant consequential
effect on the Group’s financial position as at 31 December
2016 and of its financial performance for the year then
ended, the elements making up the consolidation cash
flow statement and the related disclosures thereof in the
consolidated financial statements.
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In our audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015, we were also
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
assess the likelihood of the Group being able to obtain a
mining exploitation permit and therefore we were unable
to determine the appropriateness of the recoverable
amount assessment of the mining activities related assets
preformed by the directors and whether any adjustment to
the mining activities related liabilities should be made. We
did not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Prepayments to suppliers

Included in the Group’s trade and other receivables as
at 31 December 2016 were prepayments to two major
suppliers of HK$33,688,000, which arose from the
prepayments for purchase of mobile phones from the two
major suppliers by the Group during 2016. At 31 December
2016, no impairment loss has been recognised in respect
of the prepayments. However, we were unable to obtain
direct confirmations from the suppliers and the financial
information regarding the suppliers, or any other alternative
audit evidence to verify the existence and recoverability
of the prepayments from the two major suppliers at 31
December 2016. Therefore, we were unable to determine
whether any adjustment to the trade and other receivables
as at 31 December 2016 is necessary because of the
limitation on our work on the existence of the prepayments
and, notwithstanding the existence issue, whether any
impairment loss should be recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2016. Recognition of such adjustment
or impairment loss may have a significant consequential
effect on the Group’s financial position as at 31 December
2016 and of its financial performance for the year then
ended, the elements making up the consolidated cash
flow statement and the related disclosures thereof in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certificated
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard of Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue
an auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

However, because of the matters described in the “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the
“Code”), and we have fulfill our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man

Practising Certificate Number: PO5309
30 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEZHERBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —~F+-_A=+—HILtFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of mining right

Share of results of associates

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
that may be subsequently
transferred to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on
translation from functional
currency to presentation
currency

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

LOSS PER SHARE
Basic

Diluted

Notes

P £

W 2= 7
55 B AR

EM
H g A
H b Wz K 548 8
HE R DA
THEHR
B & B A 9
SRR A FE SR 2 BB B 1R

17
DB E R R ZEE

BRFrIS B AT R 1R 11
FremiEe 10

FEEE

Htt2mP A AR EER
BREER

2IEEMELZ
ERER

FEZEAKA

FEHFRER:
ZAN/NETEZ 2 DN
TR I 1 HE 25

EHFEDEARA:

ZA/NIE SN
TR Bl 1R an

BRER 15
BN

%58

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHIT
110,638 157,903
(108,801) (152,509)

1,837 5,394

1,235 2,172
(6,116) (8,102)
(2,645) (6,592)
(15,242) (18,281)
(1,278) (1,302)
(84,240) =

(905) (1,986)
(107,354) (28,647)
21,059 -
(86,295) (28,647)
(12,247) (12,612
(98,542) (41,259
(49,807) (23,118)
(36,488) (5,529)
(86,295) (28,647)
(58,710) (31,774)
(39,832) (9,485)
(98,542) (41,259)

(5.99) cents 1l

(2.78) cents 1lli

N/A ~3E A

N/A i
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A BRI &

At 31 December 2016 R-Z—FE+_-_A=+—H

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7E FET FAET
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment R K 5 16 9,049 10,033
Mining right =R 17 168,516 266,342
Investments in associates /N 18 1,151 2,072
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 19 4,903 11,443
Club memberships S EsE 20 872 1,096
184,491 290,986
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories "E 21 1,197 2,017
Trade and other receivables EWE SERF KR
b e W AR R 22 40,256 43,282
Amount due from a FEU —FE M B A A
non-controlling shareholder — BT
of a subsidiary A& B 2 5KIE 23 3,345 3,586
Held-for-trading investments RIEEREKREA 24 1,254 2,111
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEEY 25 16,000 12,852
62,052 63,848
Current Liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables EBRNE SRR KR
H e AR K 26 37,863 21,707
Amount due to a related party R —REEAT ZFIE 36(a) 1,296 106
Amounts due to non-controlling FETH B A R
shareholders of subsidiaries JEHE 1 A% 3R 2 FRIA 23 3,252 3,384
Tax payables FERT B IE 6,272 6,394
Warrants RIS K FE 30 - 1,568
48,683 33,159
Net Current Assets RBEERE 13,369 30,689
Total Assets less Current HWEERRBERE

Liabilities 197,860 321,675
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

a BRI R &

At 31 December 2016 R—Z—"FE+-A=+—H

Capital and Reserves EXREE
Share capital [N
Reserves ]

Equity attributable to owners of ZARQATEE AEERER
the Company

Non-controlling interests FE 22 i) 14 2

Non-current Liabilities ERBEE
Other borrowings HmEE
Deferred tax liabilities REHRIBEE

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lau Siu Ying
g rEEE
CHAIRMAN

E

Notes
B 5

28

27
31

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
83,206 83,206
23,457 82,167
106,663 165,373
37,749 77,581
144,412 242,954
13,762 14,754
39,686 63,967
53,448 78,721
197,860 321,675
REESE
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi
BE2RAE
DIRECTOR

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERERBEX

Attributable to owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE —ZF—

REFTZRA=+—RHIFE

NG ZPN;
Share Non-
Share Share Special Translation  Statutory option  Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve funds reserve losses Total interests equity
BRE FHEH
BRE  ROGEE BAHE RERE iTES RE  ZHER ag EE REE8E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FhEx TEL FiEn TER FER T FhEL TEL FiEn
(Note i) (Note i) (Note iii (Note iv) (Note v)
(WE) (M) (&R (KfEY) (M)

At 1 January 2015 RZZ-1%-F-B 82,906 394,904 2,481 79,929 30,132 1,074 (395,554) 195,872 87,066 282,938

Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - (23,118 (23,118) (5,529)  (28,647)

Exchange differences arising on ARENRERERIIER

translation of functional currency MEEZERZE

to presentation currency - - - (8,656) - - - (8,656) (3,956) (12,612
Total comprehensive income FEZEBHA

for the year - - - 8650) - C@3118 BI774) (9485 (41,259
Issue of shares upon exercise of ROEBERESRTRN

share options 100 238 - - - (83) - 255 - 255
Issue of shares upon exercise of BB ETRREER

unlisted warrants ESo i 200 820 - - - - - 1,020 = 1,020

At 31 December 2015 R-F-1%+-A=1+-8 83,206 395,962 2,481 71,278 30,132 991 (418,672) 166,373 77,581 242,954

Loss for the year FEFRE = = - - - - [49807)  (49.807) (36488  (86,295)

Exchange differences arising on ABENHEEEZIEE

translation of functional currency MELZEREZE

to presentation currency - - - (8,903) - - - (8,903) (3,344) (12,247)
Total comprehensive income FERELHA

for the year - - - 8903 - - 49807)  (8TI0)  (39.83)  (98542)

At 31 December 2016 RWZE-~E+=A=+-H 83,206 395,962 2,481 62,370 30,132 991 (468,479) 106,663 37,749 144,412

Notes: B 3 -

()  The share premium represents the amount subscribed for share () MBHEEERAERACEBEHMEZRE-
capital in excess of nominal value.

(i)  The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal (i) HhFEEEMEEHRBAT 2RO EERERRD
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal AR—NMNANFETEBEARWEMET
value of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the ZBRHEBERERE-
time of the group reorganisation in 1999.

(i) The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising on iy BMEREBEEASIEBE2EE/BEBEFEEHN
retranslating the net assets/liabilities of foreign operations into REA2YEEMEE 2 K BB
presentation currency.

(iv) The statutory funds are required by the relevant laws applicable (v, ZEESEEARASEEEFREARLM
to the Group’s subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic (THREDKZZHB AR ZBBEGREZ
of China (the “PRC”) and can be utilised to offset the prior years’ R WA AREEZETENE AR ATE
losses of the PRC subsidiaries. EZEE-

(v)  The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options vy BREXRELEEERLERARITEZEREZ

granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in Note 3
to the consolidated financial statements.

RNFE FERGE PR HR KM 3B AR &
EWRNRZRF 2 ST REAE — M-
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hEREZERBRAR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —~F+-_A=+—HILtFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax

Adjustments for:
Interest expenses
Interest income
Fair value loss on held-for-trading
investments
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of mining right
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of trade and
other receivables
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of available-for-sale
investments
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of club memberships
Reversal of impairment loss of
an associate
Reversal of write-back/(write-back) of
rebate payables
Share of results of associates
Write down of inventories
Recovery of write down of inventories
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Lapse of unlisted warrants
Long outstanding account
payables written off

REED
B P15 75 A B 1R

g

OF]

Sy

| BB 32
| S A
HEEBEREZRAVFERBRE

SLER IR HE R 2R EE R

SLEME B AR K

Ho Al & U5 AR TR AR
(B &5 1
A HEERERRZ
B E B

e TR 2 RE R
—MEEE QR 2 REEERRD

MEEm S (Em)
J&{+F B 40 fR 5K
DIHBE QB ZEE

7 & MO

T & MR 3 =

BN Bz ITE

E R EN S TR

i 5 5= H 1) R 1B 2R R A R AR

2016
HK$’000
TERT

(107,354)

1,278

(25)

423

84,240

798

6,340

210

20
905
(286)
343
(1,568)

(159)

2015
HK$'000
TAET

(28,647)

1,302
(1,007)

621

2,767

6,234

(1,489)
1,986
1,171

(640)
783
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — A "F+_A=+—HIFE

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade and
other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in
held-for-trading investments
Decrease in amount due to
a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary
Increase in trade and other payables

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Payment for acquisition of shares
in an associate

Purchase of available-for-sale
investments

Purchase of plant and equipment

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

EELSEBCEERERE

FERD
W B 5 85 50 A MR B K
R/ (850)

HIEEERER D (3EM)

e — PRI P /B8 2 ) — & SRR &l 1%

PR SRR,

e E 5 RR M
H b & 1 BR B AN

REEBRE/ (FFA)
BEF8

REED

B2 WA E

Wi — B g R R Z R
BEAHLERSE

BERE M&RE

REFBHRE (FFA)
REFH

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FET
(14,835) (16,964)
1,106 3,954
1,673 (31,130)
342 (2,819)
(132) (357)
15,017 150
3,171 (47,166)
25 1,007

- (1,163)

- (7,374)

(15) (15)

10 (7,545)
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hEREZERBRAR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+-_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Advance from/(repayment to) a director

Proceeds from issue of shares upon
exercise of share options

Proceeds from issue of shares upon
exercise of unlisted warrants

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/
(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

BMEEH

XE,/ (EE) —REFZBR

RITEBRERZHITRN Z
P33R

RITEIE LM RRAEER BT
Betn 2 P {5 3R

BMEEBHRE (FFA)REFHE

ReRRSEEYEM (RD)

R
FOZRERREEEY

A
1
"
i
N
R
W

FRZBERREEEY

ReERREEBUEHRIN

Be MRITHET

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
1,745 (2,561)

- 255

- 1,000

1,745 (1,306)
4,926 (56,017)
12,852 71,264
(1,778) (2,395)
16,000 12,852
16,000 12,852
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SREMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-ZT—<"F+-_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended). The shares of the Company
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent and ultimate holding
company is Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the

annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience
of the shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are distribution and trading
of mobile phones and related accessories, development
of marketing and after-sales service network and mining
and processing of celestite, zinc and lead minerals.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal
associates are set out in Notes 39 and 40, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR ER M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1

January 2016

The Group has adopted the following amendments
to HKFRSs (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016.
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable

and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities
to use judgement in the application of HKAS 1 when
considering the layout and content of their financial
statements.

Included in the clarifications is that an entity’s
share of other comprehensive income from equity
accounted interests in associates and joint ventures
is split between those items that will and will not
be reclassified to profit or loss, and presented in
aggregate as a single line item within those two
groups.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements.

2. RABAMBHREEN (EEY
BHmEER])
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e M HHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — X "F+-_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1

January 2016 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
- Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of
a revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to
HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for
intangible assets. This presumption can be rebutted if
either the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue or revenue and the consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated. The amendments are applied prospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group has not
previously used revenue-based depreciation methods.

2. KABRBMBHREER ([HFERM
BHmEE]) (&)

(a) BRFETAENETE BB HE

BRI -R-FE—NF—F—HEXH
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EREENFI6RREBEHER
EIBH R —BBMERBE 2T
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AW mBEENTAEYE BFE
REBRBEERE -FEG LR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SREMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group.

2. KABRBMBHREER ([HFERM
BHmEE]) (&)

(b) E ML KR EMZHET - AEMEETE
BYBHEER

REEE W LR F RN T 5 E M E =
AR AT BE B ER (8 2 4R A B TS 3R
KB ZHE/RETEEUBRE

Amendments to
HKAS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKAS 12
HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Statement of Cash Flows:
Disclosure Initiative'

Sales or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses'
Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases®

AR -

BEEFEL REaREXR:
BT ABE] e i

EEMBHHRE REFHEHEBEZ
ERFE10 R ARIKEEDRE
BEBGF AN HEHEELEIH
F28R21BF] A

BB EL HAEREERER
F125 2 185] ELEREEE

BAVBHRE SRl T A2
R E 5%
—E—F)

BEMB®RE BPAEAHWA?
AERIZE1558

BEEMBHRE BHEMBWmE
HRIFE15R 2 HER|IFE155E
EH REEFPER

WA 2 & E?
BEMBRE HES

AR E165%

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — X "F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2. XABRBMBHREER ([FERM
BHREER]) (&)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) EBEEKEMZ A AENETE

not yet effective (Continueqd)

Amendments to HKAS 7 - Statement of Cash
Flows: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sales or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) if the objective of the entity’'s
business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets.
Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that are not
held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit of
loss (“FVTPL”).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —~F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to allow
entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRSs. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

Amendments HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts
with customers

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations; application
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual
property; and transition requirements.
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2,

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases

For lease accounting, HKFRS 16 introduces a single
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. For lessor accounting, HKFRS
16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of adopting the above new/revised HKFRSs
to the Group. The Group is not yet in a position to
state whether these pronouncements will result in
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies
and financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except that certain financial
instruments are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

In preparing the financial statements of the Company,
the director is aware of the net current liabilities of
HK$58,592,000 and the net liabilities of HK$11,015,000
as at 31 December 2016. The financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis because the
Company is able to control the repayment of amounts due
to subsidiaries of HK$57,250,000.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. In addition, these financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”).
between group companies together with unrealised profits

Inter-company transactions and balances

are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiaries either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

3.

TESFHE(E)

REEHREEEE (E)

YRR BB R B SR IR WA AR - W
BRARASE ((FRIEEH)MERE
E FMELAENRRMMBEITRAEDR K
BEZAVERBETE - WBEZAHENE
ENMAEZABEXIZRWE R Z RAFER
B-AEENERBREB T B A#ERE
BWBRZ A TFEENAE LHELT
ErzWasBBRRBaNER A5 H
EEARBER S BAFEXEIELZ
WU EE J7 AT BRI B B R E L DI R G B JE
s (RN IB AR 2 BB EE
@) BB BRELEANREL S —F
BEEGFE TRIMAEMIFES S
BAVEFE - WEMEEZHBEKAT
BT BRIFBARR AR B ITIRA T A
EAERBERT RABERAME-

MBI TERZENRRARERKE
BZRAFEER HRERNEZIARER
AERENTENE (REAWERHE
AH12EA) RS ERRKER 2 2 F
BZHERK TREEAER- D8R
BEXABCIAREBZMBEEMERT
B -ORBEREANER -

AEERMB AR RS 2 BB N TR
KIEHIE EARIIRERR S - AEEE
mMOFERIE RS REESIERE A
RERE B RH B AR R &8 - FFE
s 2 FHESEEMMN IR RERF
BREZEMERE BREXES AR 1R
BRARFEEA -



Annual Report 2016
ZE—R"FH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SREMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-ZT—<"F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even if
this results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’'s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the

carrying value of the associate.

Where unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment
of the asset transferred they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss. Any premium paid for an associate above
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the investment in
an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of
the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

3.

EREHBER(A)

BEAT

BERRDEREEATHREATENZ
e ERERYIEMBLAATELER

L
n

T

XD - BAZENEZEBRETZH
5 R IR AB I FR R Il S K R P2 ) % 5
B ZET -

e NRIRAERAAR Bt BE QR
MHERARER RSN KBRS
BMERREEFEIWBREIUEEE
EHRE EBREANERENGZ AR #RE
ZEBITTHR HEEIHEZXFER
ABR I -

AREBEEBLNRMETIIHELEZ
A REBENEBEREENBENT
ZHEHRBRER - REEEEBE QAR
ZERGHELRMRER BEE AR
FREE S8 -

ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%%@%iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz
EiR AHEBENRNBEDRER L —H
%%QT%ﬁﬁtﬁ$ﬁlF%W$T%
MEE ABEERKRBEFREAFELZ
HESHEAREAN Uit AZBERBZEK

HET HAEXBEEER TN —RBEQ
AIZRERCRE RIS AEIFE M IER

BEEMRRZ T AHKRE 2 REEETTR

BRI -



Annual H(pml 2016
A=

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SREMBHRRME
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of plant and equipment includes its purchase price
and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method. The principal annual rates
used for the current year are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5% — 20% or over the term of
the relevant leases, whichever
is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 20% — 33%

equipment

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

An item of plant and equipment is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

3. XEEFHER (&)

Waimt WRERRE s A FERE 5
BEXBEARTREELEMmRERMHRK
W 2 FROR - S ENERITHI M S E AR R
BiIg o

EEmZBERNEmR N REEREE
R

iz
B

um

ARFG UL AT 1 1 AR 755 By AR

FEBWARBEREERASKERELERE
BREZRE-

BE R M

MRE Kkt (R TAZRR SN ) AR R 5t
FERRREBRBR-

BEMEEBRACEEBEERKEEH
HAZEERRBMERA

BEMRBEHEB ZFERBEMGAIER
FHRFFARMGRBEER RERZE
WEHER AN - RERMAZ EBFRMT :

mEiiE 5% — 20%38k 75 # FH &f
(ABREEAAE)
R KB 20% — 33%
NET
RE 20% — 25%

iR E RRE 2 REESREMG T ED
T AIZEERNRHRER A WEEHE -



\F

4

China Fortune Holdings Limited

hEREZERBRAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —~F+-_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the item is recognised.

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Intangible asset
Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite life are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Mining
right is amortised using the units of production method
based on the proven and probable mineral reserves.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Intangible asset (Continueq)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Provision for close down and restoration costs

Close down and restoration costs are provided in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during mine
development or during the production phase, based on
the net present value of estimated future costs. The cost is
capitalised where it gives rise to future benefits, whether the
rehabilitation activity is expected to occur over the life of the
operation or at the time of close down. The capitalised cost
is amortised over the life of the operation and the increase
in the net present value of the provision is included in
borrowing costs. Where there is a change in the expected
decommissioning and restoration costs, an adjustment is
recorded against the carrying value of the provision and
related assets, and the effect is then recognised in the
profit or loss on a prospective basis over the remaining life
of the operation. Provision for close down and restoration
costs do not include any additional obligations which
are expected to arise from future disturbance. The cost
estimates are reviewed and revised at the end of each
reporting period to reflect changes in conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, cost of conversion and other costs that
have been incurred in bringing the materials and supplies to
their present location and condition, is calculated using the
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.,e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period,
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences

in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at

arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
other PRC state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be recognised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is recognised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the asset was
acquired. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are initially measured at fair value and all other financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets represent held for trading financial assets.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They arise principally through the provision
of goods and services to customers (trade debtors), and
also incorporate other types of contractual monetary
asset. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these assets are carried at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
other reporting period subsequent to initial recognition (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

Evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor; or

e  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

e granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s
financial difficulty; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continueq)
For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of financial asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When any part of financial
asset is determined as uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for the relevant financial asset.

For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at
cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
cost are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or
significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities
are part of a group of financial liabilities which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management strategy;
or (iii) the financial liability contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, amounts due to related parties and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Fair value measurement

The Company uses Binomial Option Pricing Model to
measure the fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market. Difference may arise between
the fair value at initial recognition (which, in accordance
with HKFRS 13 and HKAS39, is normally the transaction
price) and the amount determined at initial recognition using
the valuation technique. Any such differences is deferred
and not recognised in profit or loss. Amounts deferred
are recognised in profit or loss when pricing of equivalent
products or the underlying parameters become observable.
When the transaction is closed out, the amounts deferred
are released.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the services received are measured by reference to
the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values
of the services received are recognised as expenses
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve) when the Group obtains the goods or when
the counterparties render services, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ili) is @ member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEHBE(£E)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity or to the parent of
the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Mining right

The mining right represents the right of Sifa Mining to
conduct mining activities in Huangshi City, Hubei Province,
the PRC. The mining right is amortised using the units of
production method based on the proven and probable
mineral reserves.

The latest 2-year mining operating permit, which Sifa Mining
was allowed to carry out exploration activities only, but not
exploitation activities, had been expired on 25 September
2016 and, up to the date of this report, the Group is
preparing for the application of a mining exploitation permit.

In the opinion of the directors, Sifa Mining is able to obtain
a mining exploitation permit in this application.

Production capacity assumption

The mining operating permit under renewal limits the
production capacity to 100,000 tons per year. In the
opinion of the directors, the application for increasing the
production capacity is procedural and Sifa Mining should
be able to obtain a mining operating permit with higher
production capacity without significant cost. In case the
production capacity limit cannot be increased, the carrying
amount of the mining right may be impaired.

Reserves estimates

Reserves are estimates of the amount of products that can
be economically and legally extracted from the Group’s
properties. In order to calculate reserves, estimates and
assumptions are required about a range of geological,
technical and economic factors, including quantities,
grades, production techniques, recovery rates, production
costs, transport costs, commodity demand and commodity
prices.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Reserves estimates (Continued)

Estimating the quantity and/or grade of reserves requires
the size, shape and depth of ore bodies or fields to be
determined by analysing geological data such as drilling
samples. This process may require complex and difficult
geological judgments and calculations to interpret the data.

Because the economic assumptions used to estimate
reserves change from period to period, and because
additional geological data is generated during the course of
operations, estimates of reserves may change from period
to period. Changes in reported reserves may affect the
Group’s financial results and financial position in a number
of ways, including the following:

()  Asset carrying values may be affected due to changes
in estimated future cash flows.

(i)  Depreciation, depletion and amortisation charged to
profit or loss may change where such charges are
determined by the units of production basis, or where
the useful economic lives of assets change.

(i) Decommissioning, site restoration and environmental
provisions may change where changes in estimated
reserves affect expectations about the timing or cost of
these activities.

(iv) The carrying value of deferred tax may change as
a result of changes in the asset carrying values as
discussed above.

Provision for close down and restoration costs

The provision for close down and restoration costs is
estimated by management based on the current regulatory
requirements issued by the Hubei Provincial Peoples
Government. Provision set up, if any, is reviewed regularly
by management to ensure it properly reflects the obligation
arising from mining and exploration activities.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of trade and other receivables
was approximately HK$40,256,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$24,028,000 (2015:
HK$43,282,000, net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$24,045,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes other borrowings as disclosed in Note 27 and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of their review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates thereto. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
maintain its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead)

The net debt to equity ratio at the end of reporting period

was as follows:

Debt
Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Equity

Net debt to equity ratio

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Loans and receivables (including
cash and cash equivalents)
Available-for-sale investments

— at cost

Held-for-trading investments

— at fair value

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured

at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss

EXEBRER (&)

BEMRZFREYERLTNT

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
& 13,762 14,754
ReRReEEY (16,000) (12,852)
FAE (2,238) 1,902
T = 144,412 242 954
FEEYEERLLEX N/AT 8 F 0.78%
E@mIT A
(a) =R ITHAEF
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
BKEE
BN ERER
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A HERE
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@

(b)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

The directors considered that the carrying amounts
of the above financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost approximate to their fair
value, except for the available-for-sale investments
carried at cost less impairment because the range of
reasonable fair values estimates is so significant that its
fair value cannot be measured reliably (Note 19).

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial assets included available-
for-sale investments, held-for-trading investments,
trade and other receivables, amount due from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and cash and
cash equivalents. The Group’s major financial liabilities
included trade and other payables, amounts due to
a related party and non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, warrants and other borrowings. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continueq)

Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group are exposed to
foreign currency risk primarily arising from foreign
currency bank deposits, other receivables and
trade and other payables.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s significant
monetary assets and liabilities which are
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities
at the end of reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities

&8

2016
HK$’000
TERT

HK$ BT 2,638

$¢RTA(£)

(b) BHERBEZERERHE (&)

™ 45 [ b

2015
HK$’'000
TAET

3,706
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HEE R NEBIAHERE
EERBIEEEAINZEETT
REBEERBEZRR

Assets
BE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
20 21

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation
of HK$. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 4% (2015: 4%) appreciation and
depreciation in the functional currency of the
relevant subsidiaries (RMB) against the above
foreign currency. 4% (2015: 4%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of reporting
period for a 4% (2015: 4%) change in the
exchange rates. A strengthening of the functional
currency of the relevant subsidiaries against the
above foreign currency would give rise to the
following impact to the Group’s loss for the year,
or vice versa.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continueq)

Market risk (Continued)

(M)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

FEBERD

—BTT

Decrease in loss for the year
- HK$

In the management’s opinion, the above
sensitivity analysis is not necessarily
representative of the inherent foreign currency risk
as the exposure at year end does not reflect the

exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is not exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to its fixed-rate borrowing
(see Note 27 for details) as they are carried at
amortised costs. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The Group is not exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk as the interest rate of borrowing is fixed
(see Note 27 for details).

6. $RIH (&)

(b) BHEEBEZEEFERHE (&)
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continueq)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
loss for the year and decrease/increase
accumulated losses by approximately HK$80,000
(2015: HK$64,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for the Group’s variable-rate bank balances
at the end of reporting. The analysis is prepared
assuming these financial instruments outstanding
at the end of reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. The 50 basis point increase/
decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual reporting
date. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2015.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. @M I E (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(b) BHERBEZERERHE (&)

(Continueq)
Credit risk FERK
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to REBZZERBTFERGHEKE

its trade and other receivables, amount due from a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and bank
balances. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition
of trade customers. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In addition to credit risk on trade and other receivables,
the Group is also exposed to concentration of
credit risk through advance to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of HK$3,345,000
(2015: HK$3,586,000). Because of its significance,
management has regular liaison with the counterparty
to understand their financial position and to identify
any early sign of potential problems. Should any
potential default risk arise, the Group’s management
will take prompt actions to safeguard the Group’s
assets.

In addition, the Group had concentration of credit
risk on its liquid funds as 99% (2015: 98%) of bank
balances were placed with five (2015: five) banks.
However, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continueq)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity instruments quoted in the PRC stock exchange.
Management monitors the price risks and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arises.

The management considered that the Group’'s
exposure to the equity price risk on held-for-trading
investment is not significant. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the recognised of borrowings as well as the
cash flows from operating activities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its derivative and non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

6. $RIH (&)

Liquidity table
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
mELH
BRAIE
%
2016 ZE-RE
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTEHNBER
Trade and other payables ERESRAREMEMRR -
Amount due to a related party Eff—2@EAL A
- a director - —RESI/HE -
Amounts due to non-controlling ERMBAR
shareholders of subsidiaries FEGIMRE 2 5B -
Other borrowings EffEE
- fixed rate -EE 8.47
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
T
ERF=
%
2015 ZE-IE
Non-derivative financial liabilities FITERBEE
Trade and other payables EREHRAREMEMERR -
Amount due to a related party EN—ZEEALZFE
- adirector -—REEIHE -
Amounts due to non-controlling BB
shareholders of subsidiaries FEBIMRE 2 HE -
Other borrowings U
- fixed rate ) 8.47

(b) BEEBREEAERKE (&)
REBESRM (£)

Ondemand More than1  More than 2 Total Carrying
orless year but less years but less undiscounted amount as at
than 1 year than2years than5years  cashflows  31.12.2016
i
ZE-KE
T=A
REXS  SMER  SREE  KEEREE =t-A2
HME HRoF HR6F hEEE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR T#R T#R TR
22,139 - - 22,139 22,139
1,296 - - 1,296 1,296
3,252 - - 3,252 3,252
1,166 1,166 14,928 17,260 13,762
27,853 1,166 14,928 43,947 40,449
Ondemand  Morethan1  More than 2 Total Carrying
orless  yearbutless years butless undiscounted amount as at
than 1 year ~ than 2 years  than 5 years cash flows  31.12.2015
—T-1fF
+=A
RERY  SMER SRFR AEBEEE  =1+-AHZ
SIME i HH6E nELE RAfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TiER T T
21,707 - - 21,707 21,707
106 - - 106 106
3,384 - - 3,384 3,384
1,250 1,250 16,003 18,503 14,754
26,447 1,250 16,003 43,700 39,951
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 7. DEER N UK

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W s -8

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-makers (the “CODM”) that are used to make
strategic decisions.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes
the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:

e  Mobile phone business

e  Mining business

Corporate expenses, corporate assets and corporate
liabilities are not allocated to the reportable segments
as they are not included in the measure of the
segments’ profit or loss, segments’ assets and
segments’ liabilities that are used by the CODM for
assessment of segment performance.

w BERBEBZHE

AEEERHELRBREZETES
BARE([ETBEZERRE])EMN
ZmEBEREESE -

BE_Z—R"F+_A=+—HILF
ER - AEEEEMENZ2HD -
BN & FEBRE R E RN MRS -
I B F B RET R AR ES - it
BRI DB AT 2R
EEREAMEFRD B ELE:

s BIERER

s RBE®

MREESH CEEERCERAR
WRAAATBZEERRENEDH
RERER 2O RED DHMEER
DHMEBEEZFERN RAREROE

ERAEHDE-
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SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Reportable segment revenue
from external customers

Reportable segment loss

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of mining right

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade and other
receivables

Write-back of account payables

Recovery of write down of
inventories

Reversal of write-back of
rebate payables

Reportable segment assets
Reportable segment liabilities

FEREH
SLRTR MR 2 R EEE
LB E ZRFA K

Ho Al B W R R

R 2 BB 5 18
1 0 FE S BR X
T & MR =

& A< [0 40 B 3K 20 3¢ [

7.

THER KR WS (&)

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W s -8
w BERBEBZHEK (&)

BE-_Z—X<"H¥+=ZHB=+—H1L

FE
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
BE
BEEK PRUE K @st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT FET
110,638 - 110,638
(5,138) (86,799) (91,937)
6 315 321
- 84,240 84,240
798 - 798
(159) - (159)
(286) - (286)
20 - 20
54,634 182,602 237,236
(3,333) (74,431) (77,764)

101 |

X\

A
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —~F+-_A=+—HILtFE

7.

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

Revenue

Reportable segment revenue and
consolidated revenue

Loss before income tax

Reportable segment loss

Fair value loss on held-for-trading investments

Interest income

Miscellaneous income

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
club memberships

Lapse of unlisted warrants

Staff costs (including directors’ remunerations)

Corporate expenses

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Consolidated loss before income tax

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 7. DB ER B U (&)

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W s -8

BRATEH AR

AE2HmoEmEE

RIFEEREZAFEER
B A A

FIEWA

BhA] B IR E TR
B &R
EMMERER L
BB B 18

I LR RE R K
BTIRA (BREEFHM)

EEXH
DIHBERRZ XA

B & B A

w BERBEBZHEK (&)

2016
HK$’000
TERT

110,638

(91,937)
(423)

25

769

(6,340)

(210)
1,568
(5,658)
(2,965)
(905)
(1,278)

(107,354)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-ZT— X XF+-_A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 7. S ZBEB B k% (£)
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TE2HTHBRIAIZH ez 1B
wm BEERBEZHE (&F)

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities (Continued)

2016
HK$’000
FET
Assets EBE
Reportable segment assets A2/ HEE 237,236
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEEEE
— Investments in associates —BEQRZIEE 1,151
— Available-for-sale investments —AHEERE 4,903
- Held-for-trading investments —BEEERE 1,254
— Club memberships —@ e 872
— Cash and cash equivalents -ReRkBEEEY 582
- Others —HAth 545
Consolidated total assets AEEBE 246,543
Liabilities &
Reportable segment liabilities AEZmoHEaRE 77,764
Unallocated corporate liabilities SEEEEE
— Tax payables — IR 4,574
- Receipt in advance (Note 43) —TEUFRIE (B 5E43) 15,599
— Amount due to director, Mr. LAU —ENEER S EZHRIE 1,296
— Others —HAth 2,898
Consolidated total liabilities LEBERE 102,131
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Reportable segment revenue
from external customers

Reportable segment loss

Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of trade and
other receivables
Write down of inventories
Recovery of write down of
inventories
Write-back of rebate payables

Reportable segment assets
Reportable segment liabilities

KEIINAEFFEA 2R

7 #P I R

2% A EE

FrEREH
FLEME 5 AR R
Ho Al B UR R
FERR 2 BB 18

T & MU
T & MR =

3 e 2 H1 B8R 3R

7.

THER KR WS (&)

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W s -8

w BERBEBZHEK (&)

Bz Z2—HRF+-_A=+—81t

FE
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
% &
BEES R BET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
157,903 - 157,903
(8,087) (3,608) (11,695)
386 369 755
2,733 34 2,767
1,171 - 1,171
(640) - (640)
(1,489) = (1,489)
52,053 281,977 334,030
(4,723) (98,612) (103,335)
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(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

Revenue

Reportable segment revenue and
consolidated revenue

Loss before income tax

Reportable segment loss

Expenses used in the development of mobile
games

Fair value loss on held-for-trading investments

Interest income

Miscellaneous income

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
available-for-sale investments

Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
respect of an associate

Staff costs (including directors’ remunerations)

Corporate expenses

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Consolidated loss before income tax

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets
— Investments in associates
— Available-for-sale investments
— Held-for-trading investments
— Club memberships
— Cash and cash equivalents
— Others

Consolidated total assets

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 7. DB ER B U (&)

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W s -8
w BERBEBZHEK (&)

2015
HK$’000
FHET
W
A 2/o U MR A W
157,903
BRATEBHATEE
A2 EsE (11,695)
RARFAEZ B IEE 2 X
(32)
BIEEBEREZ A FEERE (621)
B WA 1,007
HIEUA 773
RAHEHEREER
L EE B (6,234)
BEOEm—MBERRERZ
BB R 1B 45
BIXA (BIEEEHH) (5,610)
PEZT (2,992)
DB E N E 2 EE (1,986)
7&K AN (1,302)
BRATE AT A BB (28,647)
BE
A2W|MoHEE 334,030
ROBEEEE
—BERRZIRE 2,072
— A HEERE 11,443
—BHIEEBEKRE 2 Al
— e 1,096
—-ReRBSEFEEY 3,503
—HAhb 579

REEERE 354,834
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 7.

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities
— Tax payables
— Warrants
— Amount due to director, Mr. LAU
— Others

Consolidated total liabilities

(b) Geographical information

During 2016 and 2015, the Group’s operations and
non-current assets are situated in the PRC in which all

of its revenue was derived.

(c) Information about major customer

In 2016, revenues from two (2015: two) customers in
the mobile phone business of the Group amounted
to HK$65,220,000 and HK$35,011,000 (2015:
HK$57,688,000 and HK$47,557,000) respectively,
each of which represent 10% or more of the Group’s

revenue.

(d) Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable or received for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net

of discounts and sales related taxes.

THER KR WS (&)

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W s -8
w BERBEBZHEK (&)

2015
HK$’000
FAT
=R

AEZ/oHaE 103,335

RO EEE
— B RiE 4,574
—RIREE 1,568
—ENEERRLE KA 106
—EAh 2,297
REBERT 111,880

(b) i E

RZE—RERZT—RF XA5H
ZEBRFRPEEGMUNFTE M
2k EEKERE-

(c) EBTEEFZEH

RZTE—R"F AEEBRHEEEY
Ma(ZE—RF MA) TFEFHKE
2 Bl £65,220,0007% 7t 35,011,000
L (ZF —hF 57,688,000/ 7T
547,557,000 7T) * HFEAEE K E
10%3k A £ °

(d) Yz

Y et 17 B sk B (B 2 & FE AT
E EAREBKEREYTHCELER
RERERBEKRKE R ZKRE I
EMBRIT N R E AR IA
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Exchange loss

Fair value loss on held-for-trading
investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of club membership

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade and other receivables

Lapse of unlisted warrants

Long outstanding account payables
written off

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of an associate

(Reversal of write-back)/write-back of
rebate payables

FINANCE COSTS

Interests on other borrowings wholly
repayable within five years

8. HitlhzmRER

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET
X &8 (52) (14)
BIEEBEREZ
NI EEE (423) (621)
HAHEERERR
BB EE (6,340) (6,234)
REMEERAZBERBIE
(210) =
PEWKE 2 BER R E M E K
IR IER 2 BB E 18 (798) (2,767)
I TR M B R 1,568 =
HMH R E MR EE
FETRR K 159 =
o —MEE AR ER
ZREEE - 45
(ME B E) 4 [l FE
5] 41 8R 5K (20) 1,489
(6,116) (8,102)
9. MEMAX
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET
ARAFRBHEEZEM
BEZFE 1,278 1,302
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —~F+-_A=+—HILtFE

0. INCOME TAX CREDIT 10. FIBHRIER

The amount of income tax credit in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents deferred
tax arising from reversal of temporary differences during the
year (Note 31).

Fortune (Shanghai) International Trading Co Ltd (“Fortune
Shanghai”), P8 E=ZHEESFERA (“Shanghai
Yuanjia”), KB M EREBMK ﬁﬁﬁﬁ A A (“Zhuhai
Reminda”) and &= AR ERE B R A F) (“Sifa l\/llnmg”) were
established in the PRC and subject to the EIT rate of 25%
(2015: 25%).

No provision for income tax has been made as the Group
did not have any estimated assessable profits during the
year (2015: Nil).

BAEEMWARNMEHRIEE & EIEF
NEOEREEREE ZBREHEA (M
31) e

ER(LB)BBRESERAR([REL
Bl) - EBERzEH i—ff%ﬁﬂiﬁﬁ(“ﬁ
Bl KETERERAXKBARA
(BSR/EEQ%LJ)&EE@E%‘ﬁE%ﬁBE
Al (M4BT E]) NP BIK - WEIR25%
—ThF25%) 2 EMSHIER

RN AREERAF R I BT A G 2 BR
BUm A W BAEH TS BB (—F—
FE) e

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the RNEEZHEMRKGEHE S 2B AEZ Y
loss before income tax per the consolidated statement of METSRHAIEREEENT
comprehensive income as follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET
Loss before income tax bR ET1S LRI ES 18 (107,354) (28,647)
Tax credit at the domestic income tax 1% 728 #b ff 15 5 B &R 25%
rate of 25% (2015: 25%) (Note) (ZE—RHE:25%)5tE
2 BHIEE % (KsE) (26,838) (7,162)
Tax effect of share of results of SIHBENTIZEEZ
associates Fifg e e 149 328
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A~a] F1 i F % 2 T 75 52 £
for tax purpose 1,240 3,173
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERHRIMAZ R E
tax purpose (292) (733)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised & =2 £ 18 &5 18 2 &) A i 1%

and utilisation of tax losses and EREA N

deductible temporary differences i 7 5 3,659 2,679
Effect of different tax rates of H el R EE &8

group entities operating in eG4
other jurisdictions 1,023 1,715

Income tax credit

Fris i e (21,059) =
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10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continuead)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$166,456,000
(2015: HK$145,312,000) available for offset against future
profits. The tax losses are subject to the final assessment
by the tax authorities in the respective jurisdictions where
the tax losses arising from. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the estimated unused tax losses
due to unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$37,876,000 (2015: HK$22,602,000) that may be
carried forward for a period of five years from their
respective year of origination. The remaining unrecognised
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of reporting period, the Group also had
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$8,949,000 (2015: HK$9,094,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to these deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Note: The domestic income tax rate represents the EIT rate where
the Group’s operations are substantially based.

10. REHER (&)

RERBEERD  ~NEB G AE
EIMRR G F < @RS A HEEIR
%4 /166,456,000 L (ZF — A F:
145,312,000/ 7T ) - BLIBE BEFEED
EEEBENMEB AR T B EER
%R o B P B VETE B R TOE B RR - 8
VRN 2H RSB A 2B IEEIERE
RECRBEE - FARERREEBRZ
5518 49 537,876,000 7L (—Z T — A F:
22,602,000 7T) ' AIBEA S FEEAH
FF o F T &9 R WERR B TR 5 18 B 0] A% PR HR
e

RERBLEER AEBAEUNHY
B Z B 48,949,000 L (Z T — A F -
9,094,000/ 7T ) ° B, K A] B EE & 7] 410
MEREEANEEERET AR - i &
MZEANBEREZERREERIBE
Eo

e : AHPAIS B R AR BAR D EKE
RZEEMEHBEX-
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11. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 11. RFrEH A& A

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FET
Loss before income tax is arriving at B FT 15 %4 A 5 98
after charging/(crediting): BB (5FA) -
Auditor’s remuneration Z B A B & 949 956
Cost of inventories recognised as ERRABRAI ZFEMAR
expenses 108,801 152,509
Write down of inventories FE MR - 1,171
Recovery of write down of inventories 17 & Hifl J £ [2l (286) (640)
Depreciation of plant and equipment BMEREE2TE 343 783
Staff costs BTHRA
— directors’ emoluments (Note 12) —EEMe (MHsE12) 4,520 4,825
— salaries and allowances for —H#BITHS K28
other staffs 4,995 8,180
— retirement benefit scheme — R IREFFT B LK
contribution (excluding directors) (TBEES) 488 1,087
10,003 14,092
and after crediting: REEFTA:
Service income from provision of REYRLREBERSE 2
logistics and promotion services R 75 e A 110 309
Interest income FLEMA 25 1,007
Government grants BT 48 B 23 37
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VAR

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12.EE &
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2015: FRNDNEENMNF AN (ZE—RHFE: X
six) directors during the year were as follows: M)BEEEaZME0T:

Lau Chang  Wong Lit

Siu Ying Luo Law Wing Seng, Chor,
(“Mr. Lau”) Xi Zhi  Chun Kwan Victor Alexis ~ Wang Yu Total

LI

(T8%%]) BBz Bifm BxE B IR ae

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§O00  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TER TER TER TER TET

2016 ZE-RE

Fees Bt - - 100 100 100 - 300
Salaries and allowances R 3,542 167 - - - 457 4,166
Retirement benefit scheme contribution & /K& ¥ 5+ | 3 3 15 - - - 36 54
Total emoluments Hewa 3,545 182 100 100 100 493 4,520
2015 “E-1fE

Fees e - - 50 100 100 - 250
Salaries and allowances He Rz 3,856 178 - - - 484 4,518
Retirement benefit scheme contribution & /K& F 5+ 2| 3 3 16 - - - 38 57
Total emoluments Hess 3,859 194 50 100 100 522 4,825

13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEM S

Out of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in AEERIfUEZRHFALFR EFmMA(=
the Group, two (2015: two) were directors of the Company T-RF MU)RARAESR HMEH
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note R EXHF1I2MEBECERR BT =
12 above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2015: —E-RFE =) ATZHENT

three) individuals were as follows:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET T T

Salaries and allowances Fre &ER 1,303 1,293
Retirement benefit scheme contribution & K& F 5t 21 {4 7% 54 54

1,357 1,347
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13.

14.

15.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following band:

Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/%8 7T LA A
None of the five highest paid individuals waived any
emoluments in current and prior years.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including directors, as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during current and prior
years, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of
reporting period (2015: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of loss per share for the year is based on
the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$49,807,000 (2015: loss of HK$23,118,000) and the
weighted average number of 832,063,442 shares in issue
during the year (2015: 830,753,853 shares in issue).

No diluted loss per share is presented as the effect of all
potential ordinary shares is anti-dilutive for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015.

13.

14.

15.

BEME (&)

ZEREZMENFTIEE:

2016 2015
Number of Number of
employees employees

EE®A EE&H
& 3

REAFERBEFERN AUKESFAL
BEREWEEMHE -

BE-_Z-—XERZZ-—HF+H
=T -BUEFE ARESERARURS
AL (BRESR)NEAME (FAH
BREMASEMAREER 2 e kE

[ g=\

RAFEFBEFERN SEKN S EIK
RE - B 2HmLEE B AR INEBR E (7
BRE(ZZ—HF:E)-

BRERE

FREREBEIBEFARQRAEBTAZ
FE{h E51849,807,0008 T (ZE—HF : B
$823,118,000% 70) R F AN E #EH1TKR D 2
hniESE 15 £1832,063,4420% ( —ZE— R 4F:
830,753,853 B B 1T HR 1D ) 5T & -

HRBE-Z-—R"FER-_FT—AFT-A
—t—HALEFEEZMEERAEEARBAR
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16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. j‘ﬂ,ﬁ%&%ﬁ{ﬁ
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction

improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total

BA -
HEXE RKERRE AE ERIR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FiET AT TET FET

COST B

At 1 January 2015 RZE-HF—H—H 9,306 4,143 5,041 6,795 25,285
Exchange adjustments ERAE (421) (133) (161) (326) (1,041)
Additions wm - 15 - - 15
Write-off s - (298) - - (298)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-AF+-A=+—H 8,885 3,727 4,880 6,469 23,961
Exchange adjustments I 5 % (345) (151) (79) (435) (1,010)
Additions )l - 15 - - 15
Disposal/write-off &/ 8 (4,216) (456) (2,657) = (7,329)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—R"E+-ZA=+-H 4,324 3,135 2,144 6,034 15,637

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ZRit#fi E KRR E

IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2015 R-F-1F—A—H 6,046 3,374 4,554 - 13,974
Exchange adjustments EXAE (274) (103) (154) - (531)
Provided for the year FERE 246 125 412 = 783
Eliminated on write-off MaEEER - (298) - - (298)
At 31 December 2015 R-F-RF+-A=1+—H 6,018 3,098 4,812 - 13,928
Exchange adjustments ERAR (164) (116) (74) = (354)
Provided for the year FERE 233 104 6 = 343
Eliminated on disposal/write-off & /MR ER (4,216) (456) (2,657) - (7,329)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"E+-A=+—H 1,871 2,630 2,087 - 6,588
CARRYING VALUE BREE

At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"E+-A=+—H 2,453 505 o1 6,034 9,049

At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RE+-A=1+—H 2,867 629 68 6,469 10,033
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At 31 December 2015
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2016

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2015

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2015
Exchange adjustments
Impairment for the year

At 31 December 2016

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

The mining right represents the right of Sifa Mining to
conduct mining activities in Huangshi City, Hubei Province,
the PRC. The mining right is amortised using the units of

17. MINING RIGHT 17. KB
COST 2N
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—H—H
Exchange adjustments P 5 38 &

R—ZE—RF+=_A=+—H
E 5

RZE—RF+A=+—H

R BERREE

RZE—RHF—A—H
R

RZE—RF+-_A=+—H

BE 5 AR
FRRIE

RZEBE—R"F+_A=+—H

R-ZFE-—RF+-_A=+—H

production method based on the proven and probable Fi=Rd

mineral reserves.

HK$’'000
TAET

460,000
(22,080)

437,920
(29,440)

408,480

180,229
(8,651)

171,578
(15,854)
84,240

239,964

168,516

266,342

REEEfERENTEAtamamE
TTRBRBOER - REETDERCD KA
RETBEERENEEN AEREME
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17. MINING RIGHT (Continued)

(i)

Mining exploitation permit

After the expiration of a 5-year mining exploitation
permit on 25 September 2012, Sifa Mining obtained
twice a renewed mining operating permit for 2 years
from the Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC
(hZEARAEMBELERE) (‘MLR”), under which
Sifa Mining was allowed to carry out exploration
activities only, but not exploitation activities. The latest
2-year mining operating permit was expired on 25
September 2016 and, up to the date of this report,
the Group is preparing for the application of a mining
exploitation permit.

The directors are of the opinion that the Group is
likely to obtain a mining exploitation permit in this
application. Nevertheless, the directors are also
exploring all commercially viable opportunities to
maximise the return from this investment, including
finding potential buyers.

17. RIERE (&)

(M)

R & ° 2

EFRARBEFAIZER T —FNA
“t+hBERE IBEEED MR
BREARAMEE L ERS ([E
TEIRE ) B H R AR FRNEERRE
AR BRI RE AT
BR M 3F B R UE B S8 M A IR AR AT
AEER-_T—R"FAA-+HAE
o MEEARE S NEBEELEH
VEERIERT Al 7 Z FR &5 °

EERRAEERAKRBFHRALE
RSHRBEFTAIE - AT EFZTEER
PIERELAIITHHE  UIEZERE
RMEFAEHK EESKEEER -
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17. MINING RIGHT (Continued)

(i) Assessment of impairment

The directors have carefully reviewed the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit of the mining
business (the “CGU”) to which the mining right is
allocated. The directors determined the recoverable
amount of the CGU was not able to be measured
by a fair value less cost of disposal using the market
approach method as no sufficient and reliable
market information can be obtained. The recoverable
amount of the CGU was then determined by a fair
value less cost of disposal as at 31 December 2016,
using the income approach method, with reference
to the professional valuation performed by Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Ltd, an independent firm
of professionally qualified valuers. The recoverable
amount of the CGU was classified as level 3 in the
fair value hierarchy. The key assumptions adopted in
the income approach method relate to the renewal
of a mining exploitation permit, estimated reserves,
estimated productivity and the estimated prices of
mineral resources. The calculation uses cash flow
projections with certain key parameters as below:

Discount rate (post-tax)

BEER R (BiiR)

Growth rate 1 £ &
Gross profit ratio ek

Based on the above review, in the current year the
directors of the Company readjusted the exploitation
time schedule in order to match the expected date of
successful application of a mining exploitation permit,
and have consequently assessed that the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to be lower than its
carrying value as at 31 December 2016. Accordingly,
a shortfall of HK$84,240,000 was recognised as
impairment loss on the mining right to write down the
cash-generating unit to its recoverable amount.

At 31 December 2016, 100,000 tons (2015: 100,000
tons) minerals included in the underlying reserves were
pledged to the other borrowings (Note 27).

17. RIERE (&)

(i) 78t 18 1

EEEHTASEHRBEEMSEE 2R
E¥BReEESEN ([REELBNM])
ZAIKECE - EEHEBRCELSE
iz 2 PT Y [B] & B8 1 AT #3505 A R
BREEXNAGTE REABREES
RRAIEZMBEN - BEELE
Mz REEBEER T - F
T A=+ —BAEAKRAEARFE
BMEERR KR ECERBUEE
HEMTE IEEMERRE (8B
RAREIT EEREEET - REE
ABEMHMAIRESE I BEEATERE
BE=-WAERRACEZERRETD
BREEFRBTAE BYERMGE
fEE AT EEN RMGTER - BT
BEFERARESREAET EFEE
ELHWT:

|

2016 2015
20.5% 17.1%
3.0% 3.0%
58.6% 52.4%

RIEEMER ARREENAFEEEHN
FAERREER UERABHKNBER
EHAEs2BH YEREAFTGERS
EXBENZARESEREERER-S
—A"NEFE+ZA=t+—HZEEEBE Hit-
84,240,000 7t 2 Z 8B AR EE R
BEBE UEZESESEMMRER
Ak E &5

R-EBE—RE+-_A=+—HB HEH:=
P15 100,000MF ( —= — T4 : 100,000/ )
BECEBEMEE Z KA (HF27) o
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. BE RA 2 RE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Cost of investments in unlisted RIELMEE R 2
associates B KA 4,912 6,543
Share of post-acquisition reserves JE 5 W BB 12 R4 (3,699) (3,606)
Exchange adjustments b 50 % (62) (53)
1,151 2,884
Less: allowance for impairment (Note) & : i {E B & (B T) - (812)
1,151 2,072
Note: The associate which had been fully impaired in prior years MisT: ZBE AT CRBEEEZERE 2
was de-registered in 2016 and the corresponding allowance RZZB—NERGEHFEM - MABERERE
for impairment was written off in 2016. BER TN EM-
In 2016, the Group discontinued recognition of its share RZTE—A"F AEERIEEREDEH
of losses of an associate, Beijing Feiying. The amounts of BRNAERREZERB REREESK
unrecognised share of the associate, extracted from the AL AR ZER (FiggieEn
relevant management accounts of associates, both for the AlZHEBEEERB )M

year end and cumulatively, are as follows:

2016
HK$’000
FET
Unrecognised share of loss of associate AERDEHENT 2 FEEE
for the year 4,494
Accumulated unrecognised share of loss 2Rt ARERDEHE QR ZEE
of associate 4,494
Particulars of the associates as at 31 December 2016 and A= = N M =5 —Tmes e = B S
2015 are set out in Note 40. H Bt & ARl BSR40 -

><

117

/
\
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of the

associates held by the Group as at 31 December 2016 and
2015 are as below:

Loss and total comprehensive income 548 & % [ W %5 42 58

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

Unlisted equity investments,
at cost (note a)
Unlisted fund investment, at cost

(PFf5ta)

Less: allowance for impairment OB E R

note a(i): Included in the balance is a HK$10,234,000 (2015:
HK$10,234,000) equity interest in an unlisted private
company, in which, through its subsidiary, engaged
in developing mobile devices and operating system,
manufacturing and distribution of mobile devices.

note a(ii): Except for disclosed in note a(i) above, other available-
for-sale investments are equity investments in couple of
private entities incorporated in different jurisdictions and
engaged in different business.
note b:  The investments in unlisted equity securities and unlisted
fund investment are measured at cost less impairment
at the end of reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair values estimates is so significant that the
directors of the Group are of the opinion that fair value of
the investments cannot be measured reliably.

The Group does not intend to dispose of the investments
in unlisted equity securities in the near future.

18. B &

FLEMBARE KA

FLEMESRE ERA

PEIZERE ()
RZE—RNFA_FT—RHF+_A=1+—
B 21:/% @Fﬁhﬂ#%ﬁ RIZMIEERBEE
|y N

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH T FiET
(5,407) (3,973)

19. IR HERE

AHEERERRE:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
14,977 15,297
2,380 2,380
17,357 17,677
(12,454) (6,234)
4,903 11,443
KiEa() « X AEHBE—RIFLHLE R AR

ft EEali) -

fit kb -

##210,234,0008 T (ZE— R F:
10 234,000 7T ) - MATUIEEMTE
NN EFREBRDREREERR

RUE R DR EN R -

B K aEal) Pk B8R & Sh - B b Al it
HERERNE TR AR EERRER
MARZERETRAEB 2LEREZ
BARE -

FLETEABARERFELTESR
BRWmE BRBRAMGRBERNE
FRREGEASEAFEMGTREBK
AEBEERRBEN SN EZLS
BREZRNFE.

AEEESNEHNEEF EHRA
BHRE -
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20. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE—ZF

20. BFfE2 %

—RNETZA=t+—HILFE

HK$’000
FHET
COST R
At 1 January 2015 R—E—RHF—H—H 1,392
Exchange adjustments P 5 38 & (10)
At 31 December 2015 R_E—hF+_A=+—H 1,382
Exchange adjustments B 5 AR (14)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—RF+H=+—H 1,368
IMPAIRMENT wAE
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 AZE—RAF—H—BX
cE—RE+-A=+—H 286
Impairment loss recognised for the year FEBRZBEBIE 210
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—RFE+ZHA=+—H 496
CARRYING AMOUNT IREE
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE-—XRFE+A=+—8H 872
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE—hF+_H=+—H 1,096
Club memberships are stated at cost less any identified @SSR AR TR 2 EBIREEIEY

impairment loss. For the purpose of impairment testing
on club memberships, the recoverable amount has been
determined based on fair value less costs to sell which

represents the second-hand market price less cost of

disposal.

FRo-AEMEREs
BAFERIEEXRAETE

SR ER - AT &5
CJRBl ZF W5
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21. INVENTORIES

Inventories comprise finished goods in:

Mobile phones business
Mining business

EEICEE S
P

Included in the cost of inventories recognised as expense

for the year ended 31 December 2016 were recovery of
write down of inventories of HK$286,000 (2015: write down
of inventories of HK$1,171,000, and recovery of write down
of inventories of HK$640,000) which was caused by the

increase in the net realisable value.

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: accumulated allowance

Value-added-tax receivables
Prepayments to suppliers
Other receivables and deposits
Less: accumulated allowance

Trade and other receivables

FEW & 5 AR 3K
W REHE R

FEHIR B

BN ERRA

H YRR R
B RET R

FE UL 5 RR R N H At B UK AR SR

21. 74
715 AR R
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$°000
83 FET
58 796
1,139 1,221
1,197 2,017
BE-T-—AFT-A=T-ALFEZ

ERARAI 2 FEXNABIEARAIER
FAE I N E & 2 17 & UM [E1286,000
BIL(ZE—RHF I EMRK1,171,000%
T % 73 & #0R  [21640,00078 7T ) ©

22. B E 5 iR K H 1t B W AR X

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
18,049 53,748
(17,998) (18,281)
51 35,467

412 149
34,042 880
11,781 12,550
(6,030) (5,764)
40,256 43,282
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group generally requests for full prepayment from its
trade customers but it also allows certain trade customers
a credit period of 30 to 90 days. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance) presented
based on the invoice date at the end of reporting period:

0 to 30 days TE=1H
31 to 90 days =+—EA+AH
91 to 365 days A+—=2=8,+HAH

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines its
credit limits. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
periodically. Majority of the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have no default payment history
and good credit rating under the Group’s internal credit
assessment.

22. B E 5 R R H fth FE AR K

(%)

REBE-REKREHEFLANTEFKIE
ERMETFETRSRP=TEATRZE
B -NERBEER 2 EKEZER (2
MEEE) ZEZEAHRES 2Rk TN
T

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
5 34,847

12 482

34 138

51 35,467

EMEIMHERPA AREEFTHEER
JEZE,LET%'%&RE%E@%@'EH&W&E
ARTEPZRE -REAKEANBEE
A fh KRER Y BEAR B I I KRR B 2 FE UL &
ZEFLEBHERCEBERSERRLT-
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over its trade
debts. The following is an aged analysis of the carrying
amounts of trade debts that were past due at the end of
reporting period but for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss because management are of the opinion
that the fundamental credit quality of the customers has not

deteriorated:
Less than 90 days past due BEI LR AT
Over 90 days but less than 365 days #Ei#E:@ A+ B
past due BLR=ZETHH

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables

Balance at beginning of year FEER
Exchange adjustments ME W B
Impairment losses recognised FARRZBEBE

during the year
Amounts written off as uncollectible  F A& XU (@ 7 Hfi$4 & %8

Balance at end of year FIRER

The Group recognised impairment loss on individual
assessment based on the accounting policy stated in
Note 3.

22 EWE SRR R HMEWERR
(4&)

AEBEVTEREZEFFETMNERR-
UTRRERMNEE RN BREEEEE
RREPZEAEEERY RB(EMER
AEBEYEFEHRESEREBEZESER
ZRREERRE DT :

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THET
17 1,063

34 138

51 1,201

BZEE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHET
24,045 21,638
(481) (360)
798 2,767
(334) -
24,028 24,045

R & BAR IR M FESAT A 2 & R B i RR
Bl A E Z BB E R -
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 2 EWEBESETFLEEMEIRER
(#)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in EEEWE S R E MW R R R
respect of trade and other receivables (Continuead) HEEE (&)
Included in the above allowance for doubtful debts in FtiiptERWE SER R EMEINER 2 F
respect of trade and other receivables is a provision EREaERE @R REZERE SE
for individually impaired trade and other receivables of N E i E U BR TR 2 B 524,028,000 IT
HK$24,028,000 (2015:HK$24,045,000) with a carrying —F — [ 4 :24,045,00058 7T ) - B &R
amount before provision of HK$24,028,000 (2015: iR [E 18 /24,028,000 7L (=& — A F :
HK$24,045,000). 24,045,000 7T ) °
The individually impaired trade and other receivables relate AR E ~ FEUE 5 B8R 2k &% E 4 fE U BR
to debtors that were in financial difficulties or were in default TOF KR AN B 7% R 2 s e ) A B ) 3 7R
in both interest and/or principal payments and only a SRR ZEB A - FBHAE 7] Y B fE U BR =X
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. Z—EH e
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO NON-CONTROLLING 23. FEW FERKIB AT FEIESI IR R
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES Z3hig
The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on L EmEEI . T ENBIREENREE -
demand.
HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 24, FEEERE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FET
Equity investments listed in PRC, KA EmBRAREE
at fair value: BRATE: 1,254 2,111

The listed equity investments are classified within level 1 of ETRAKRESDERATFEERNE —

the fair value hierarchy. o
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25.

26.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating bank deposit rates.

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB and HK$, which are the functional
currencies of the relevant entities of the Group. Included in
cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2016 are the
amounts in RMB of approximately RMB13,890,000 (2015:
RMB7,856,000) in form of cash on hand and at banks.
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26.

The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of reporting

period:

Trade payables: ERE SR

0 to 30 days TE=1H

31 to 90 days =+—ZEATH
Over 90 days Bidh+A
Prepayments from customers RPN HIE
Receipt in advance (Note 43) TEYRIE (MI7E43)

Other payables and accruals HihENERREFTER

RERREEEY
RITRIRF B RITF A EHIF & -

AEBZRERREEFEVIBULER

%

FHERBZYRERARBEETE:.
R-ZF-—R"E+-A=1+—RH RE KA

H

CEBYEBEAARBFTEZ FHERIR
TR &4 ARK13,890,000t (= F—F
F: AR#7,856,0000T) cARBETRBH
MABAEME-

BN E 5 R R H b AR

RERPEEB ZENE HRIIRE
HIZ2S| 2 BRIk an T

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
82 89

- 314

180 271

262 674

125 12
15,599 -
21,877 21,021

37,863 21,707
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OTHER BORROWINGS

Secured other borrowings
— repayable after one year

At the end of reporting period,
borrowings were pledged by 100,000 (2015: 100,000) tons
of minerals reserve, carrying at a fixed annual interest rate
of 8.47% (2015: 8.47%) per annum and repayable within

SREMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-ZT—<"F+-_A=+—HILFE

BEMEMIER
— AR —FRER

two years (2015: within three years).

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have

any banking facilities.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Issued and fully paid

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
At beginning of year

Share options exercised
Warrants exercised

At end of year

EERE
BREECI0ET EBMR
ERTRABZRRBRA
FREE0.10AE T2 & RK
RE)

EfTFERRE

BT RREE

RER

the Group’s other

7. Bt E
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAET
13,762 14,754

RERBAEER AEEBHEMEEN
100,000M ( == — F 4 : 100,000MF ) HEE
REERR- &IEEHTSM%(f7
—HF:847T%)FTE - ARMEAN (=
—HEZFER)EE-

75/\ TE—RNEFR-_E—ARAF+_A=+—

CAREEWEFMIRITRE
28. R &
Number of
ordinary shares Share capital
EBER¥E R
2016 2015 2016 2015
’000 '000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR ik FER FERL
2,000,000 2,000,000 200,000 200,000
832,063 829,063 83,206 82,906
- 1,000 - 100
- 2,000 - 200
832,063 832,063 83,206 83,206




K

>/

China Fortune Holdings Limited

hEREZERBRAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR ER M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+-_A=+—HILtFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

2. LR AEBNRZR S

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 28 May
2014 which was effective at the same day and will expire
on 28 May 2024. The primary purpose of the Scheme is
to provide incentives to directors, eligible employees and
other qualified persons who in the opinion of the board of
directors has made or will make contributions which are or
may be beneficial to the Group as a whole.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may,
subject to certain conditions, grant to any directors,
employees, suppliers, agents, customers, distributors,
business associates or partners, professionals or other
advisors of, or consultants or contractors to, any members
of the Group or any associated companies who in the
opinion of the board of directors has made or will make
contributions which are or may be beneficial to the Group
as a whole, options to subscribe for shares in the Company
at any price but not less than the higher of (i) nominal value
of a share, (ii) the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the day of grant, and (iii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options, subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, (i)
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, and (ii) the number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within the time period
set out in the offer letter and upon payment of HK$1 for
each lot of share option granted.

ARBR-_Z—OFRA -+ /\BERA—
TR CERT S AT SINF B AR R
—E-WFERA- T NAHEm FTEZE
ZENANEFTERRYAKREREN G
TIEHRSEHBR AT REBRERM 2 E
E RERRBEREMAERALHE TR
B o

RIEBHE BB THREZRFT  AARE
ENREFERR/E A REREN S CIF

HEEIEHBR KB RERMZ AEE
EARERBIREMBLERTNZES &

Bl RE -XP 2HE X5
BASRH BXEFFEMER - mu’ﬁ]/\
HAPBAR T AREMNERREAR

2 BRE - ERBERTE 975/\\\(I)HX1/7}E

B (A REBSEBRSz W mE
R (i m R EEERER D BB RER

SAEMRFzFHAUmEZRSE M
BEHZBERENRBEZRODEE ZZUR
REITREEITRAZ10% 5 -

REEAR RN AIIREF STt - (VRIEAT & 7]
BERHBIREZBERDBE. TRBEY
RATERFFEEBEITRG 210% - &)
mERBEARTZ@EABBAREL &G
R AR D BT R EITROE
B THRBHARQREANEBEBITRG
Z1% o

FEEZAR 2R IR Z BE R T A
Bo WARERMABIRE 2BREST
XM1ETZER-
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

At 31 December 2016, there were 11,900,000 outstanding
shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Scheme (2015: 11,900,000
outstanding share options). The outstanding shares
represent less than 2% of the shares of the Company in
issue at that date.

The following table discloses movement of the Company’s
share options held by employees and consultants (including
directors) during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015:

Exercise price

Name Date of grant Exercisable period per share
8 RHAH figid BRTHE
HKS
B
Category |:
£-8
- Directors 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 10 11.7.2018 0.255
-E% -3-=% St o =k
tAt=H —Z-N\5tA+-H
Category II:
28
- Employees 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 10 11.7.2018 0.255
-E& ZE-=F ZE-ZFtATZAE
tAt=H —Z-N\5tA+-H
Category IIl
=8
- Consultants (Note i) 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 10 11.7.2018 0.255
~ B (f3h) -3-=% St o =k
tAt=H Z-N\§tA+-H

Total for all categories
FREEREt

Exercisable at the end of the year
REZAR

Weighted average exercise price

WETSEE

Weighted average remaining contractual life
at the end of the year

RERZMETHHTADE

2. IR REBARZRE (&)
R-F-—AF+-A=+—8 RE
BEEEEMARKITE 2 BRED X
11,900,000/ R E#E 1Tl (Z T —HF:
11,900,00010 M ARITHEZ BEAHE ) » RETT
ROIEERRBRZBEETROTR2% °
TERBEBRE-T-AFR-_FT-HF
TZRA=Et-BLEREREERER (B
ER)MBARRRIERE#

Outstanding at Exercised  Outstanding at Exercised  Outstanding at

1.1.2015  during the year 31.12.2015  during the year 31.12.2016

RZg-1F RZB-RE
R-B-I1% =8 t2A
-A-H =t+-A Sr=E
HARTE ERfTR HARTE ERfTR WARTE
(Note ii) (Note ii)
(H3Hi) (Ht3ii)

12,500,000 (1,000,000) 11,500,000 - 11,500,000
100,000 - 100,000 - 100,000
300,000 - 300,000 - 300,000

12,900,000 (1,000,000) 11,900,000 - 11,900,000

12,900,000 11,900,000 11,900,000

HK$0.255% 7 HK$0.255B7  HK$0.255E7C - HKS0.255% T
353 years & 2.53 years & 1.53 years £




A

\\ \??/ //

2

China Fortune Holdings Limited

hEREZERBR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR ER M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+-_A=+—HILtFE

29.

30.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Notes:

() The Group granted share options to the consultants in return
for their provision of management consultancy services to the
Group.

(i)  The weighted average share price at the date of options

exercised during 2015 is HK$0.49. In 2016, no share option
was exercised.

WARRANTS

Balance at 1 January R—A—B2Z#&&#%
Exercise in the year FRNITEE
Lapsed in the year FREK

Balance at 31 December

On 15 July 2014, an aggregate of 160,000,000 warrants
was fully placed and issued at the issue price of HK$0.01
per warrant. The subscription price of the warrants is
HK$0.5 per share and the subscription period is two
years starting from the date of issue. The proceeds of
approximately HK$1,600,000 raised by the placing will be
used by the Group as general working capital. Assuming
the full exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the
warrants, approximately HK$80,000,000 will be raised
and will be used by the Group as general working capital
and as funds for future development of the Group. Total of
3,200,000 warrants have been excised and the remaining
have been lapsed in 2016.

29.

30.

Rt-ZA=+—BZ#&R

DUBRHBERAIRZRS (&)

B 3 -

() AEERTEECERE DERKKSER
AEEREEREARSE ZEIR-

(i) ZE—HETEEREEZA ZINETFHR
BAR0.49BTT - R T —/NF - EERE
BRI

IR R R

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
1,568 1,688

- (20)
(1,568) =

- 1,568

R-_ZT—NELA+AHB BRETES
MRREFONB T RBEE RETAL
160,000,00017 R AX #E 78 - R AR 4 3% 2 7R
BEAERRM0SEL  REBHMHET
HERFAEMF -BEEE2MEHE
#91,600,0008 T AIEAEE — K& &
Bo o B RIRAEFZAH R BRI BT
f# - % %5 4780,000,0008 7 » E #§ A 1EA
EE—REELESCRAEERRERHE
% - A& $£3,200,00017 R 4E B T EITEE

M TRBIEZBER T — NFRI-
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30. WARRANTS (Continued)

As disclosed in Note 3, Binomial Option Pricing Model is
used to measure the fair value of the warrants that are not
traded in an active market. However, in accordance with
HKFRS 13 and HKAS 39, the fair value of the warrants at
inception is normally the transaction price. If the transaction
price differs from the amount determined at inception using
a level 3 valuation technique, that difference is deferred and
not recognised in profit or loss and referred to as deferred
day-1 profit or loss. The table below reflects the activities
in deferred day-1 profit or loss for the unlisted warrants,
including the aggregate difference yet to be recognised
in profit or loss at the beginning and end of the reporting
period and a reconciliation of changes during the reporting
period. Amounts deferred are recognised in profit or loss
when pricing of equivalent products or the underlying
parameters become observable. When the transaction is
closed out, the amounts deferred are released.

30. BIRHER (&)

FANFT EESPT IR FE - AR RERA A A Hi4E
EERUEERAABRLZ MG 2 BIE
BZRFE-ARM ZREBBUHREE
AIZE135E R BB G5t ERISE30% - A
ERRERRZAFERERRHER-
WERZXBEBRARNARERGRAE=
REERMAEE2HE ZEZ8DE
BEERTEEHERRRER LHAEL
BRENEER - TRRRIE TR RE
ERECERGNRNERNEREE &
R ARE RS AR A RS B R EH
ANAEEZEARBEHANEH UK
EHEEMIEEXNAB2ERAAEBR
B EESHEEEHEBRaNER -EX5F
BN RESREBERRK-

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET
Deferred day-1 losses arising from HETAREIMEELEZ
issue of warrants EXLEAEE
Balance at 1 January R—A—BZ#&#% 392 22,971
Fair value change in warrants not W IE S AR 2RI
recognised in profit or loss HEFE N AR (392) (22,579)
Balance at 31 December RTZRA=+—H2z&% - 392

Fair value changes subsequent to initial recognition
are not recognised in profit or loss to the extent of the
unrecognised loss on initial recognition.

i R W SRS B R FE R B 18 - RIS )R i
RN FEEHTIENERZNER -



A

\\ \?/ //

3

China Fortune Holdings Limited

hEREZERBRAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —~F+-_A=+—HILtFE

30. WARRANTS (Continued)

31.

The fair value for the warrants at 31 December 2015 is level
3 recurring fair value measurement which calculated by
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the

model are as follows:

Option pricing model used

Expected volatility (%)
Expected life (Years)
Risk-free interest rate (%)
Spot Price

Expect dividend yield

The Binomial Option Pricing Model requires the input of
highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility of
share price. Therefore the changes in subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimates.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

At 1 January 2015
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2015
Exchange adjustments

Credit to profit or loss for the year (Note 10)

At 31 December 2016

30.

BT

PriE A E EE

T8 HA R 18 (%)
BEHFR (F)
5 12 B A R (%)
BB
EHREE

wRERE (E)

RBEER-F-EF+-A=+-A2
AF(E BERH A ET B E
2 ESRIFEATENE - BARD 2 M

2015

Binomial option
pricing model
— A B
EERA
67.64

0.54

0.137

0.29

0

“EANREERLAFTRHABAIEL
RERAEE SRRERE Bt T8
BEERREAEAZL eHRAFERTE
REAZE -

1. EEHEBEERE

R—ZE—RFE—H—H

& H
== hE = H=+—H
PE
REEB= AR (H7E10)
R_E—R"F+_A=+—H

TRENAFERBEFEACHERZE
ERIEEE R

e
Revaluation of
mining right
arising from
acquisition
AWiEsI 3z
RS
HK$’ 000
THET

67,192
(3,225)

63,967
(3,222)
(21,059)

39,686
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$41,061,000 (2015:
HK$38,835,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

During the year, the Group made minimum lease payments
of approximately HK$2,337,144 (2015: HK$3,363,000)
under operating leases.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as
follows:

—FNR
FE_FEFELF

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive

(BHREEMSF)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties, retail shops and
common areas in the mining site. Leases are negotiated
and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from one to three
years (2015: one to six years).

1. EEBEEE (£F)

BEFBECEMERE BT NF—
A—BE UPEREBARMRIEFE

2R EBBZTENR - BN ANEE TR

NESFREWE AT RSN 2 BT
B 2 8 #941,061,0008 T (— T — A F:
38,835,000/8 7T ) 2 B Bl Fsfa] - B KA A2
RARRRBEOER =58 NI ERGEE
MR EFZEERERTREERHER
o

32. BEHEY

EEBEBRBA

FR AEERELLHEOINZHIE
e AB2337, 1448 L (T —HEF:
3,363,000/ 7T ) °

REFRPEE R AKEREA A HEHA

KmBLR T HE BBz HEMRBZN
ZARBEEHSAENT :

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER FHBT

757 1,127

213 736

970 1,863

REBMONREAEERETHOE
¥ ZEERBESAABRENZES -
HORBEHR-—ZEZ=F (T —HF:
—ERF)ZFHERRERE -

/]_\\

31
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33.

34.

35.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had no
contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2016
and 2015 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements were as below:

Contracted, but not provided for
— leasehold improvements —HEXE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Under the rules of the Scheme, the employer and
its employees are required to make contributions to the
Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a fixed rate of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

33.

34.

BRI ERFHREE

35.

HREE

RZE—RNFh_FT—RHF+_A=1+—
B ANEETETRHIABE-

BAREE
REIB—AER-E-AF+-A=+—

A RRERE M B RRHRBHE 2 RE
BAEIENT

The Group
rEH
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,515 1,624
R k8 I 5 &

AEESMAREREREREEBRE
REEEE ([FH8]) F B2 EEAX
ABHZESBRARBEESHARTE R
Bl 2 RR BEREEEAKRMAE
EZ L RAE 8 R R B BT 8 2 M
—EERRBEEFEHREMRR

AEEETHAHBAREREY AT EK
FERBREBERARBANTEIKE %
LW B R RARE & KA Z BIE R A%
BARBHNEEIHA  REEBNRERES -
AEBYZERBNE 2 E—BERE

e RE K o
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36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Amount due to a related party

(b)

Mr. LAU 2k
The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

Compensation of key management personnel and
senior management

The remuneration of directors and other members of
the Group’s key management during the year was as
follows:

2 HA A& A
RKERH

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

During the year, there was one (2015: one) senior
management whose emolument was within the band
from nil to HK$1,000,000.

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management was determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

6. BEAT2HE

(a)

(b)

B —EBEALZFHE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAET
1,296 106

i3

AR REEM - TF B RARER

= ©

FTEEBEANSBRBREEEHKEZH
B

FREERAKEEMEIZEEAR
ZMEmT:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT TET
4,876 5,172
72 75
4,948 5,247

FR —FZ(ZE—HF: —R)D
MEEBEEKEZHNEERBESR
1,000,000/ jT48 5] °

EERHEMFEEBABZHMEAE
MEEeZREMNALRRETSE
BREX-
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.

37. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 7. BERATFR-E—XE+_-A
POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 =+—B 2B RREE
2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FTHET FABT
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR 2”E 47,577 51,006
Current Assets REBEE
Other receivables E 4t e U BR X 287 288
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEEY 12 12
299 300
Current Liabilities RBasE
Other payables H fth JE A BR 3K 1,641 1,268
Warrants RARIEE - 1,568
Amounts due to FEHBT B A B 2 5
subsidiaries 57,250 55,739
58,891 58,575
Net Current Liabilities REBABEFE (58,592) (58,275)

Total Assets less Current BEERRBERS

Liabilities (11,015) (7,269)
Capital and Reserves EXREE
Share capital & A 28 83,206 83,206
Reserves Gk 38 (94,221) (90,475)
(11,015) (7,269)
On behalf of the Board REEZ=SG
Mr. Lau Siu Ying Mr. Luo Xi Zhi
2N EE BEE2EE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

*TE EF
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38. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 1 January 2015 RZZ-n¥-A—-H
Loss for the year FEBB
Exchange differences arisingon = REAEMEL EREE

translation

Issue of shares upon exercise of ~ F 718 B IR 2R %47 Rk 7
share options

Issue of shares upon exercise of  RT{E3F E ARERE

unlisted warrants 21kl
At 31 December 2015 R-F-1f
+-A=t-8
Loss for the year FEBB
Exchange differences arisingon ~ RAEMELZEFZE
translation
At 31 December 2016

SREMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-T—<"F+=-A=+—HILFE

38. KR A EE

Share  Contributed  Translation ~Share option Accumulated

premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total

R EE B4R BEREE BRERE RiER aE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TEL TEL TR Tix TR
(Note i) (Note ii) (Note i) (Note iv)
(BtsEi) (HisEin) (W &Eiii) (MtsEiv)

394,904 40,948 37,607 1,074 (561,599) (87,066)

- - - - (4,870) (4,870)

- - 486 - - 486

238 - - (83) - 155

820 - - - - 820

395,962 40,948 38,093 991 (566,469) (90,475)

- - - - (4,463) (4,463)

- - 717 - - "7

395,962 40,948 38,810 991 (570,932) (94,221)
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38. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(0

(i

(il)

The share premium represents the amount subscribed for
share capital in excess of nominal value.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the consolidated shareholder’s funds of the subsidiaries at
the date on which they were acquired by the Company, and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation less the
amount applied to pay up the 1,000,000 nil paid shares at the
time of the group reorganisation.

The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising
on retranslating the Company’s financial statement into
presentation currency.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transaction in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

38. XA TFEME (E)

GEE

(i)

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

B AEERERACEBLEEABE LR
5 o

BERBHRABEMBRAREARARIKER
AZHRARRESEARANEE AR
B U BB T BT AR (5 2 T B AR A B R
REEE4RFEE7T1,000,000 8% A 55 8% 24N ik
DIRRZRIBME 2 Z5

BERBERNARFAMBRRENLER
BIERmEE 2 W BB

BRERBEEEESREERRITEZBER
B2 AFE FHIENERA M B RERM TSN
BN RERNRZR S 2 G BRE—
2t -
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which
are incorporated with limited liability, at 31 December 2016

and 2015 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WELREH

Express Fortune Holdings Limited

Express Fortune

v

R

Fortune Shanghai

RELSE

Sifa Mining

Telefortune (China) Investments
Limited

REFH (FE)REFRAR

Eagles Fund Technology
Investment Limited

ZEESHBREBRAR

Zhuhai Reminda

HEERE

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AL R

British Virgin Islands
RERLES

Hong Kong

Wholly foreign owned
enterprise established
in the PRC

ERERLZ
NEBELE

Sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established
in the PRC

FEREKLZ
mONRERE

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Sino-foreign equity joint

ventures established
in the PRC

ERERI TR ERE

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
R
RBERA/
ZRER

Ordinary US$100
EBARI00ET
Ordinary HK$10
Non-voting deferred
HK$5,000,000 (Note)
EBB10HT
BREEEERN
5,000,0003 7T (FisE)

US$28,100,000

28,100,000% 7t

RMB1,000,000

AR #1,000,0007T

Ordinary
HK$40,000,000

3% 1%40,000,0007% 7T
Ordinary HK$10,000
L ®H%10,000% 7T

RMB10,000,000

AK%10,000,0007T

Note: The deferred shares carry practically no rights to dividends
or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the respective company or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

9. T EMBLARIEH

RZE—RNFA_FT—RHF+_A=+—
HZARREZMBEAR (B ETMAL
ZEBRAR)FBOT:

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company Principal activity

VNG
BRARAEE
HEMEEZ LA TEER
2016 2015
100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
100% 100%  Maintaining the
corporate office
EBRNAPRE
100% 100%  Trading in mobile
phones
BEEVHE:
50.8% 50.8%  Exploration and
extraction of mining
resources
HRRARBEAR
100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
51% 51%  Trading in mobile
phones
BEERDE:
B 2T

3R FE B 0 BB P 7 T U B A A
ZBRBHEIME A REMBRRASE
SHRHFEERAGHNE LREHRB
BRIG 2R DK ZHER -

3

it
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 30. TEMBATER (&)

(Continued)

The Company directly holds the interest in Express Fortune
Holdings Limited. All other interests shown above are
indirectly held by the Company.

The principal activities are carried out in the place of
incorporation/establishment except for Express Fortune
Holdings Limited which mainly carries out its business in
Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

7K ) H ¥ #5 8 Express Fortune Holdings
Limited# z= - i1 L X IR 2 Fr B H s
HRARRMEREE-

FrExpress Fortune Holdings Limited¥ 2
EEBRBEBRIN FRFBEBKHNGT
AL, B St Bh AR & o

EH B AR R FREFREMEEEEE

AHERE

ERFIIEDESRRYANEE Z EENK
BEFEREAFEZARAMBERF -
EEZRB BINEMBMBARZHBES
BRABERBERITR.



40. PARTICULARS OF ASSOCIATES

41.

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2016

and 2015 are as follows:

Name of associate

BENTEH

Artchief Industries Limited (Note)
EREXER AR (M)

ERREGENRERRF

(Beijing Feiying)

ERREGEMRBRAF

(L R=RE)

Ever Trillion Investments Limited

Form of business
structure

EBEREL

Incorporated
BRii1ZAA
Incorporated

Bl

Incorporated

AL

Place of
incorporation/
operation

ERLEA VS $iE

Hong Kong

BE

PRC

HE

British Virgin Islands
RBRAHE

Note: Artchief Industries Limited was de-registered in 2016.

MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance

in relation to the Company’s business to which the

Company was a party and in which a director of the

Company had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, were entered into or subsisted during the financial

year.
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40. BE QN TER

41.

RZE—RNFh_FT—RHF+_A=1+—
Bz AREEBE AR FEBOT:

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital

held by the Group

rRERE
ERTRAHE
Bt
2016 2015
= 50%
50% 50%
42.86% 42.86%

Principal activities

FEER

Trading in electronic
products

BEEETEM

Trading in second-hand
mobile phones
BE_FTHHE;

Investment holding
REER

M EREXARAFMCR T —NFRE

s e

EERNRG REHEGHNZERHE

RAFRFERBRARBDEBDAT LK
BEZARBREPITNTEARAES
REFHEBEEAZER (ERIER)ZX
5 RHHAH -
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

42, FEZEFI RS

Sifa Mining, a 50.8% owned subsidiary, and Zhuhai
Reminda, a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company, have

material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). Summarised

financial information in relation to the NCI of Sifa Mining

and Zhuhai Reminda, before intra-group eliminations, are

presented below:

Sifa Mining

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income

Loss allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the year ended 31 December
Cash flows used in operating activities
Cash flows generated from

financing activities

Net cash outflows

As at 31 December
Current assets
Non-current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Accumulated non-controlling interests

RN THEBS0.8% R 2 M B A

CIEE g

ERERSI%ERZMBRARKERR

iﬁﬁ*ﬁéﬁiﬂ ) 1

(R4 Bl 1E 42

@m]) AR EBRERINEE R EIFEF
MRaENETERERRREYHEN2T%

ERBE2E50T

PEREE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T T
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
W z& - _
FEEE (70,385) (8,279)
2B U A (77,589) (16,202)
EIEEFIMER 2 EE (34,629) (4,074)
M MRS A ZRE - =
BEt+t-A=+—HLEE
KEFEBFARSRE (5,291) (6,367)
MEEBMERERAE
2,054 3,631
REmH FE (8,237) (2,736)
R+=—A=+-—-8
MEEE 5,038 5,616
ERBEE 177,517 276,312
mEEE (50,566) (47,417)
ERBEE (53,449) (78,721)
BEFE 78,540 155,790
R eI 1 A 38,642 76,649
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Zhuhai Reminda

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income

Loss allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the year ended 31 December

Cash flows generated from/(used in)
operating activities

As at 31 December

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Net (liabilities)/assets

Accumulated non-controlling interests

SREMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-ZT—<"F+-_A=+—HILFE

42, FEHIMERER (£)

KEEEZE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
BE+t=-A=+—HLEE
g 4,274 21,719
FEERE (3,794) (2,970)
FHEBBA (8,728) (3,090)
DR EFEEH S 2 B8 (1,859) (1,455)
M IEIE SR S N 2 BB - =
BE+-A=1+—-BLEE
REEEE, (FTA)
ReRE 145 (421)
R+=—BA=+-—-8
MEEE 2,924 7,672
ERBEE 255 279
mEEE (5,001) (6,046)
(BE) BEFRE (1,822) 1,905
RETIEIE 1 HE A (893) 933
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+-_A=+—HILtFE

43.

44.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 283 December 2016, the Company entered into
a conditional Subscription Agreement with individual
subscribers, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
issue total of 85,716,000 new shares all at a price of
HK$0.35 per share, which representing approximately
10.30% of the Company’s existing issued share capital
and approximately 9.34% of its issued capital as enlarged
by the subscription shares. The gross proceeds and
net proceeds from the Subscription Agreement will be
approximately HK$30.0 million and HK$29.8 million
respectively. The net proceeds from the subscription shares
will be applied for general working capital.

As at 31 December 2016, approximately HK$15,599,000
was received from the subscribers for the subscription
shares. The subscription was completed on 1 February
2017. A total of 85,716,000 subscription shares have been
placed at the subscription price of HK$0.35 per share.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March
2017.

43.

44.

HBEMRER

R-ZE—ARF+-A-+=H ARFHE
TANREAGT LA BGGRERZE Bt
ARBIRERSRIRM0.35B L 2 BI%E
174 #£85,716,000% ¥ B 17 ({5242 B3R
BT EITRARL10.30% % & R IE (5 1%
AZBEBITIRALLIA%) - REHZ

IS FIBBEREHRIBEFESD O A
30,000,0007% 7T %29,800,000/% 7t ° R iE
RO zHERBIFEKAE—REEER

N
e

RZEBE—R"FF+_A=+—H ERRE
1% 8 R IE A W EL4915,599,000/% 7T © 33
BEEER-_ZE—+tF_A—HEK-
& #£85,716,00008 RIE K D 2 I BRI H
0.35B L RBEERE -

eSS MB®RR

HAEMBHRRERN _T—LF=A=1H
BEZSHENMRET -



RESULTS

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of mining right

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of interest in an associate

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade and other receivables

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EEH
HERA

EH

Hip A ez RER
HE R AR
TRER
RAREERERER
REER

MR ERER ZREER

o — B X R A R
BEER

SIE B 5 BR 0% H A R MR
SRR 2R ERE
AEMERA 2 FB
BEKA

bR PTG 751 AT B 18
FrERER

FEER
JE1G

ARAVEEA
TR I 1 M
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B ME

E¥E

Year ended 31 December
HE+-A=+—-HLEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FHAT FAT FHT TART
623,049 198,344 57,587 157,903 110,638
(609,374)  (182,770) (49,027)  (152,509)  (108,801)
13,675 15,574 8,560 5,394 1,837
5,471 4,984 4,194 3,071 2,257
(10,847) (10,839) (10,408) (6,592) (2,645)
(26,982) (25,728) (30,040) (18,231) (15,242)
= = = (6,234) (6,340)
(60,847)  (118,637) - - (84,240)
(857) = = = =
(3,321) (1,268) = (2,767) (798)
(106) (604) (1,369) (1,986) (905)
(1,340) (1,323) (1,323) (1,302) (1,278)
(85,154)  (137,841) (30,386) (28,647)  (107,354)
15,215 29,659 - - 21,059
(69,939)  (108,182) (30,386) (28,647) (86,295)
(43,872) (59,831) (24,482) (23,118) (49,807)
(26,067) (48,351) (5,904) (5,529) (36,488)
(69,939)  (108,182) (30,386) (28,647) (86,295)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets EE®RE

Total liabilities BEEE

Equity attributable to owners of RAREEAELER
the Company

Non-controlling interests FEVE I R

EEREE

At 31 December

R+=BA=+-H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FHET FET FHET TERT
585,271 441,708 402,354 354,834 246,543
(171,702) (123,017) (119,416) (111,880) (102,131)
413,569 318,691 282,938 242,954 144,412
273,806 223,535 195,872 165,373 106,663
139,763 95,156 87,066 77,581 37,749
413,569 318,691 282,938 242,954 144,412
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